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          1  LOWER MANHATTAN REDEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  I am Alan

          3  Gerson, Council Member representing and serving

          4  Council District Number One, and also Chair of City

          5  Council's Standing Committee of Lower Manhattan's

          6  Redevelopment.

          7                 I thank you all for being here and I

          8  know we have other community members planning to

          9  come and go during staggered times over the next

         10  couple of hours.

         11                 We also have council members who will

         12  be coming and going.  This is the time of the year

         13  when the city council is engaged in the Preliminary

         14  Budget proceeding for the city budget, which is due

         15  at the end of June, so as a result there are

         16  numerous meetings going on at the same time, and

         17  council members will be coming, council members who

         18  are members of this committee will be coming and

         19  going during the course of it, but I want to assure

         20  everyone that irrespective of who is present during

         21  any time of the hearing, a complete record is being

         22  made of your testimony which will be studied and

         23  considered by the Committee as a whole, as well as

         24  by other levels of government and ultimately the

         25  Council as a whole, as we proceed with our
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          2  recommendations for Lower Manhattan's future.

          3                 At some point, I myself will have to

          4  just step out briefly to attend one of those other

          5  meetings going on at the same time, and we apologize

          6  for these interruptions.  It is just unavoidable

          7  during this time of the year.

          8                 We are joined at the moment by

          9  Council Member John Liu, who has from the very

         10  beginning of our work, initially, on the Select

         11  Committee and now on the Standing Committee, I

         12  cannot say this enough, has been a staunch friend

         13  and ally of the community of Lower Manhattan.  He is

         14  one of those council members we have always counted

         15  on to support our needs during this special time of

         16  ongoing recovery, and I can never thank you enough

         17  Council Member Liu for your, not only support, but

         18  for your leadership.

         19                 Just one or two housekeeping notes,

         20  and then we will get down to it.

         21                 In addition to the hearing, this

         22  committee will be taking a vote on Proposed

         23  Resolution 187- A, this resolution was the subject

         24  of a hearing during the month of February,

         25  pertaining to the EPA, the federal government
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          2  Environmental Protection Agencies shortcomings and

          3  failures in its planned review and assessment and

          4  follow up to the previous cleanup of Lower Manhattan

          5  premises from possible toxins, as a result of 9/11.The

          6  resolution which parallels a resolution adopted by

          7  Community Board 1 in Manhattan, calls upon the EPA

          8  to abandon its current proposed test and cleanup

          9  program, and to work with the community and experts

         10  to come up with a new plan, and to do so in short

         11  order, meaning expeditiously to assure that we do it

         12  right, and to give Lower Manhattan and indeed the

         13  entire world the assurance that Lower Manhattan has

         14  been adequately and thoroughly cleaned up, and we

         15  are protecting the health of our residents, our

         16  workers, our visitors.

         17                 This resolution if adopted by this

         18  committee, will then be forwarded to the Council.  I

         19  hope during the interim time period to receive a

         20  response to a letter which we are forwarding to the

         21  EPA which will address these issues, and hopefully

         22  address them satisfactorily before the council meets

         23  to take a vote on the resolution.  So, hopefully we

         24  will consider this resolution today, actually

         25  imminently, hopefully hear from the federal EPA, and
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          2  if we do not receive a satisfactory response we will

          3  certainly move to a full vote of the entire council.

          4                 We now actually have a quorum present

          5  for the purposes of taking the vote, so what I would

          6  like to do, Mr. Counsel, and to my left is the

          7  Committee's counsel Arthur Schiff, is take the vote

          8  now, and then hold the vote open so that other

          9  members of the committee may vote as they arrive.

         10                 It is the Chair's recommendation

         11  based on the hearing this committee held in February

         12  that the committee adopt the resolution.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  So this

         14  will be a vote on the Proposed Resolution Number

         15  187- A.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Actually, I

         17  should have asked my colleagues before we moved to a

         18  vote, do either of you have any comments or

         19  questions or anything you want to bring up

         20  pertaining to the resolution?

         21                 Therefore, I will turn the mic back

         22  over to our counsel.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  This is a

         25  resolution calling upon the United Stated
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          2  Environmental Protection Agency to abandon its

          3  technically and scientifically flawed 2005 Test and

          4  Clean Program, and work with the residents and

          5  workers, community and labor organizations, and

          6  elected officials to design and implement an

          7  effective science- based sampling and clean up

          8  program for residences and work places in all

          9  affected areas.

         10                 The vote.

         11                 Council Member Liu.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 I just want to, before I vote yes on

         15  this resolution, just thank you for leading the

         16  efforts on clarifying the issues concerning the

         17  cleanup and the ongoing issues in Lower Manhattan in

         18  the aftermath of September 11th.

         19                 We call upon the Federal Government

         20  to do more, and to do more in a diligent way so that

         21  people can truly be protected, and that we can move

         22  forward in the right manner.

         23                 So I proudly vote yes, and I want to

         24  thank you for your leadership, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council
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          2  Member Mendez.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you.

          4                 I want to echo the sentiments of my

          5  colleague, Council Member Liu, and I vote yes on

          6  this matter.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chairman

          8  Gerson.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  With

         10  appreciation to both of my colleagues present, and

         11  for reasons expressed earlier, I vote aye, and I do

         12  want to note for the record that as you have heard

         13  from the vote, we have been joined by Council Member

         14  Rosie Mendez, one of my two neighboring council

         15  members, and a member of this Select Committee but

         16  who has worked on issues pertaining to Lower

         17  Manhattan's revitalization from long before she

         18  assumed her current position as a council member she

         19  has been a staunch advocate and ally, and it is a

         20  pleasure to work with her on this committee.  Her

         21  district includes a significant part of Lower

         22  Manhattan, which lies within the LMDC's catchment

         23  area.  So, we will be working very closely together.

         24                 I thank you both, and as I said, I

         25  vote aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Well, the

          3  resolution is adopted by majority vote.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  But we will hold

          5  the vote open for other members of the committee as

          6  they arrive.

          7                 Okay, and we thank you the audience

          8  for your indulgence.

          9                 This mornings hearing is one of a

         10  series to assure that government at all appropriate

         11  levels, especially city government, and the Lower

         12  Manhattan Development Corporation engage in proper,

         13  thorough and adequate planning for Lower Manhattan's

         14  present and future.  We all know that such planning

         15  must include attention to critical human needs, and

         16  the critical necessary community infrastructure.

         17                 At today's hearing we will focus on

         18  two aspects of those needs and that infrastructure,

         19  and that is our education system and youth services

         20  provision network and our hospital and health care

         21  system and network.

         22                 The Mayor, in his vision for Lower

         23  Manhattan, spoke of bringing on- line in excess of

         24  10,000 new units of residential housing.  We know

         25  this has already begun to happen even in advance of
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          2  implementation of city policies with conversion of

          3  non- residential to residential units, with the

          4  development of size 5B- 5C in Tribeca, and with

          5  ongoing development throughout the district from

          6  west to east, north to south.

          7                 In addition, we know that this area

          8  will be inundated, literally, with thousands of

          9  construction workers to support this ongoing work,

         10  and we know at the same time, that the area, and we

         11  look forward to this, will also be inundated by a

         12  countless number of visitors and tourists and

         13  patrons of our commercial establishments coming into

         14  Lower Manhattan.

         15                 All of this requires that we assure

         16  the well- being and the safety of residents in all,

         17  of permanent residents, who live in Lower Manhattan

         18  and our temporary residents who work or visit- work

         19  in or visit Lower Manhattan.

         20                 I have not, however, heard at any

         21  point of the planning process a blueprint to assure

         22  that we do so with respect to bringing on- line an

         23  adequate number of new classroom space to

         24  accommodate the new families who we are encouraging

         25  to move in, and I have not seen adequate plans to
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          2  assure that our hospitals and our medical provision

          3  system are given the resources and the support they

          4  need to guarantee the ongoing provision of top

          5  quality care.  And just a note on that, we know that

          6  the hospitals have the extra burden of not only

          7  providing for residents, workers and visitors, but

          8  also to putting in place what is necessary for

          9  preparedness to be able to respond in case of, God

         10  forbid, another emergency.  We have in Lower

         11  Manhattan one full service hospital, the Downtown

         12  hospital, we will hear shortly from their

         13  representatives.

         14                 The next closest full service

         15  hospital is St. Vincent's Hospital on 7th Avenue,

         16  between 12th and 13th Street. Both hospitals have

         17  great challenges based on changing conditions beyond

         18  their control.  It behooves us to assure that they

         19  receive the support they need to support our

         20  communities.

         21                 In addition, we have Gouverneur

         22  Hospital the one HHC hospital which provides

         23  critical care but is not a full service hospital in

         24  as much as it lacks an emergency room and related

         25  services.
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          2                 One of the purposes of this hearing

          3  to assure that we identify and provide for necessary

          4  resources for these hospitals, and other medical

          5  care facilities, and to ensure the necessary degree

          6  of coordination.

          7                 Returning to the issue of schools and

          8  classroom space, it is unconscionable and it is poor

          9  planning which will come back to undermine all the

         10  good we are tying to do if we do not plan to assure

         11  that we have classroom space with an adequate level

         12  of class size and school services for the people we

         13  know who will be moving into Lower Manhattan.

         14                 That is the purpose of this hearing.

         15  In future hearings we will consider other critical

         16  aspects of the infrastructure of the current

         17  structure of police precincts, other emergency

         18  services, and other aspects of the community

         19  infrastructure.

         20                 I will just conclude this statement

         21  with one note that I think in general, the city

         22  planning process that we have in the city is flawed

         23  in that as we allow for variances, and as we promote

         24  expansive development, both residential and

         25  commercial, we do not have in place a system which
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          2  requires planning for the necessary associated

          3  community infrastructure. That is a citywide problem

          4  which I hope and expect this Council will begin to

          5  tackle, but it is an exacerbated problem here in

          6  Lower Manhattan, and hopefully from these hearings,

          7  we will in the Lower Manhattan context, set a model

          8  which could then be applied citywide.

          9                 That being said, it is my pleasure to

         10  call our first panel of, actually our first witness,

         11  and that is our Community Board Chair, Julie Menin,

         12  the Chair of Community

         13  Board 1 who does such a brilliant and outstanding

         14  job in advocating for our community, and developing

         15  solutions to truly a difficult problem.

         16                 It is a pleasure to have you here,

         17  Ms. Menin.

         18                 MS. MENIN:  Thank you very much Chair

         19  Gerson, and first, let me just thank you and your

         20  colleagues for your wonderful leadership and for

         21  helping us to rebuild our community after the tragic

         22  events of September 11th.

         23                 As the Chair said, I am Julie Menin,

         24  Chairperson of Community Board 1, and at first I

         25  just want to say at the outset how important this
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          2  hearing is, and how much I thank you for having it.

          3                 As a mother of three young children,

          4  and as someone who has lived in the area for a long

          5  time, I cannot tell you how much these issues matter

          6  to me personally, to all of our board members, and

          7  to the community at large, and it is because I feel

          8  so passionately about these issues that I want to

          9  ask for your indulgence because we have very

         10  important statistical and demographic data, so I

         11  hope you will indulge me.  I am going to read my

         12  testimony because I want to make sure that I do not

         13  miss any of the salient points.

         14                 As you know, Community Board 1 has

         15  devoted a tremendous amount of time and effort to

         16  provide our fast growing Lower Manhattan community

         17  with the services and facilities that we urgently

         18  need to keep pace with the growth in our residential

         19  population.  This has been a most challenging and

         20  quite frankly, very difficult task since we do not

         21  feel the City has adequately planned for all of our

         22  future needs, and it has been left to the Community

         23  Board, of course working very closely with Council

         24  Member Gerson and other local elected officials, to

         25  achieve the new schools, parks, libraries,
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          2  recreational and health facilities that we so

          3  urgently need.

          4                 Although we have had some success in

          5  these efforts, the growth in our district is

          6  continuing at an even faster pace than in the past

          7  and it truly is time for the City to institute a far

          8  better way to plan for the future and provide

          9  growing communities such as ours with the critically

         10  needed City services and facilities and

         11  infrastructure that we desperately need.

         12                 First, it is important to review the

         13  growth that has taken place over the years in Lower

         14  Manhattan.  Up until the mid- 1970s there were only

         15  a few thousand people living south of Canal Street

         16  here in Community Board 1.  Our population doubled

         17  between 1970 and 1980 bringing the total to over

         18  15,000 people. That number jumped another 10,000 in

         19  the ensuing decade to a bit over 25,000 in 1990 and

         20  rose another 9,000 during the 1990's to 34,420 in

         21  2000.  In total, therefore, our Community Board 1

         22  residential population grew by an astounding 336

         23  percent between 1970 and 1990.

         24                 But it is really the residential

         25  growth that has taken place since 2000 which is even
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          2  more remarkable and noteworthy.  According to our

          3  monitoring of new residential buildings or

          4  conversions in our district, a total of 15,611 new

          5  housing units have been built or are scheduled to be

          6  built since 2000.  This would conservatively add

          7  over 31,000 additional residents to our district.

          8  And with plans still afoot to add thousands of units

          9  of residential housing in the Greenwich South area,

         10  the Fulton Street Corridor, at the Deutsche Bank

         11  site and at 250 Water, that number will almost

         12  certainly grow to over 40,000 additional residents

         13  by 2015.  That would represent yet another doubling

         14  of our residential population during the current

         15  decade.

         16                 I have attached for your review a

         17  breakdown of all of these numbers where new housing

         18  units are being built for your records.

         19                 We present these numbers to really

         20  quantify our projected, continued population growth

         21  and to underscore our need for still more schools

         22  and health care facilities for Lower Manhattan.

         23                 As you know and thanks to your strong

         24  support, Mr. Chairman, we are scheduled to see some

         25  additional school seats come on line in a few years
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          2  at the new Beekman Street school, and at the P.S.

          3  234 Annex.  But it seems clear that even these 700

          4  new additional seats will not be sufficient to keep

          5  pace with the projected growth in our youth

          6  population.

          7                 Our Lower Manhattan schools are

          8  already severely overcrowded, and if you assume that

          9  only five percent of the additional 31,000 new

         10  residents certain to be added will be school aged

         11  youth, and I would add that that is a very

         12  conservative projection, you already foresee a need

         13  for more than double these 700 seats.

         14                 Adding Greenwich South and Fulton

         15  Street into the mix would add enough youth to fill

         16  yet another school.  I should note that in the past

         17  week the Community Board received notification of a

         18  30- story new residential building at 133 Greenwich

         19  Street, and this week we read that the WTC agreement

         20  with Silverstein Properties calls for Tower 5 to be

         21  turned over to the Port Authority, and likely be

         22  developed as a 50- story residential building.

         23                 Clearly, our Community Board district

         24  will need additional new schools in the very near

         25  future beyond the two schools scheduled to open in
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          2  2008 and 2009.  I should also note that our

          3  Community Board has made the construction of a new

          4  Intermediate School our top capital project for the

          5  past few years, and we would hope that the city

          6  planners will see the wisdom of putting the school

          7  into the budget now in light of the continued

          8  projected population growth in Lower Manhattan.

          9                 We would also urge that the

         10  Department of Education look to somehow reactivate

         11  the existing school building on Governor's Island,

         12  which could potentially be converted into a smaller

         13  high school to serve Lower Manhattan and elsewhere,

         14  and I also want to note that as a result of our

         15  World Trade Center Redevelopment Committee meeting

         16  last night, there was very strong support from the

         17  community for a school at Tower 5, the Deutsche Bank

         18  building, and while this is still very preliminary,

         19  we of course want to do more outreach to the

         20  community and hold a hearing on this.  I just wanted

         21  to bring this to your attention.

         22                 The growth in our population also

         23  places greater demand on our health care facilities.

         24    But of course, it was September 11th that opened

         25  all of our eyes to the tremendous need for emergency
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          2  care and emergency response facilities to serve this

          3  most vulnerable area.  Regrettably, Lower Manhattan

          4  will continue to be a potential target for

          5  terrorists given its major financial institutions,

          6  Landmark structures and other symbols of our nation.

          7    With that possibility in mind, Lower Manhattan

          8  must have the response teams and resources needed to

          9  respond to any potential terrorist threat.

         10                 To that end, we should also be

         11  assisting our Lower Manhattan CERT teams at Battery

         12  Park City, and in Tribeca who have already been

         13  called on to play extremely important roles in

         14  notifying the public of potential health and safety

         15  issues in our district at the Deutsche Bank and

         16  Fiterman Hall deconstruction projects.

         17                 September 11th also brought with it

         18  the exposure of local residents to toxic chemicals

         19  released when the WTC towers fell.  It is growing

         20  increasingly clear that there will be ongoing health

         21  impacts for those exposed to these toxins, and the

         22  residents of Lower Manhattan urgently need and

         23  deserve to have the government take responsibility

         24  for this clear need, and begin to provide free

         25  programs and facilities for affected residents to
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          2  receive treatment as needed.

          3                 As we all know, many people will not

          4  suffer the affects of this exposure for some years,

          5  so there really needs to be an ongoing commitment to

          6  establish special respiratory and other services to

          7  assist the residents of Lower Manhattan.

          8                 All the growth and other health care

          9  demands will also surely strain the ability of our

         10  single hospital, New York Downtown Hospital, to

         11  provide for the needs of the hundreds of thousands

         12  of residents, workers, and visitors who are in Lower

         13  Manhattan every day.

         14                 New York Downtown Hospital is in the

         15  process of upgrading its emergency room facility,

         16  and has additional plans to offer new services.  The

         17  hospital, however, is in dire need of additional

         18  resources to fulfill this mission.  The Community

         19  Board has urged the Lower Manhattan Development

         20  Corporation to provide some of that funding but

         21  other sources of revenue are needed, and I am sad to

         22  report that as of this date LMDC has not provided

         23  such critically needed funds.

         24                 The new Forest City Ratner building

         25  next door provided the hospital with an urgently
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          2  needed infusion of new funds, but still additional

          3  funding needs to be raised so that the hospital can

          4  improve and expand its services and facilities to

          5  serve the large new population that makes Lower

          6  Manhattan its home.  This is a very difficult

          7  challenge for the hospital to serve not only our

          8  growing population here in Lower Manhattan, but also

          9  the important needs of Chinatown.  We need to

         10  support N.Y. Downtown Hospital and help them to

         11  expand to address these different constituencies,

         12  and the ever- growing demands on their services.

         13                 Finally, I wish to urge the Council

         14  to look into creating some type of mechanism that

         15  ensures that the city responds to growing

         16  communities such as ours which clearly need

         17  additional services to support a growing population.

         18    Population growth should be monitored constantly

         19  and city planners need to be planning for schools

         20  and hospitals based on these changing demographics.

         21  The Mayor's office itself should be aware of these

         22  shifting demographics, and they should insist that

         23  new schools or other needed community facilities get

         24  incorporated into new private buildings going up in

         25  these affected communities.  These are critical
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          2  needs that must be met by the City, and it should

          3  not be left to the community boards and city council

          4  members to negotiate with private developers to

          5  achieve these most basic necessities.

          6                 I just want to thank you very much

          7  again for the opportunity to testify here today.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you very

         10  much, Madam Chair.

         11                 Let me just note first of all that as

         12  usual, Community Board 1 has done its traditional,

         13  thorough, superb job. The statistics you have

         14  provided with respect to projecting new housing,

         15  with the detail you have provided, will be

         16  extraordinarily helpful to the work of this

         17  committee.

         18                 So, I want to thank you for that.

         19                 Just a few very brief questions.

         20                 First, with respect to schools to

         21  follow the order of your testimony.

         22                 Do you have any sense, I know about

         23  some of this from other witnesses but do you have

         24  any sense of the current state of crowding in the

         25  schools of currently serving of the area?
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          2                 MS. MENIN:  Yes, I am sure Kevin

          3  Doherty of the P.S. 234 PTA will address this, but

          4  it is my understanding that at P.S. 234 it is at 122

          5  percent capacity, and that is wholly unacceptable.

          6                 I mean, what really angers me about

          7  this is, many people moved to Lower Manhattan

          8  because of the high quality of our public schools,

          9  and we are not going to be able to offer that to the

         10  people who live in that neighborhood if we do not

         11  take heed now and have some cogent and coherent

         12  planning for schools, long- terms schools, in the

         13  future.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  When you talk

         15  about, in your testimony, the need for additional

         16  schools, I presume you are talking about beyond the

         17  planned annex and Beekman Street School?

         18                 MS. MENIN:  Exactly, we are very

         19  interested in finding additional locations.

         20                 As I mentioned, there was some talk

         21  last night at the community board meeting with

         22  support for Tower 5, assuming it is residential,

         23  which that seems to be the case.  But also,

         24  Greenwich South seems to be a very suitable site if

         25  the city and state move forward and develop the 2.7
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          2  million square feet of residential that they have

          3  talked about for Greenwich South. That also would

          4  seem to be a good location for another school. We

          5  have also been looking at areas in Battery Park City

          6  as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  The idea of

          8  Governor's Island, is that a priority location would

          9  you say, or is that --.

         10                 MS. MENIN:  I mean, it is a idea.  We

         11  would obviously like to see something first of all

         12  either on Greenwich South or in Battery Park City,

         13  or somewhere in that area that is more accessible to

         14  parents, but we just mention that as one

         15  possibility.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Yes, I would

         17  think that we certainly need, and especially since

         18  high schools as you know, serve a wider catchment

         19  area that the City as a whole could benefit from,

         20  from schools at both locations, and I think

         21  Governor's Island could be a unique place due to the

         22  proximity of open space, and its harbor location to

         23  have a school with programs that uniquely take

         24  advantage of that space, whether it is in athletics

         25  or other subject areas, as well as the harbor
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          2  location.

          3                 MS. MENIN:  Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  But I would

          5  agree with you, that should not preclude a school in

          6  one of the inland sites at the high school level

          7  that you have mentioned.

          8                 Let me just, and I think your point

          9  about keeping in mind the importance of CERTs as

         10  part of our safety structure is very important.  Is

         11  it your understanding that the CERTs in Lower

         12  Manhattan are in need of additional resources?

         13                 MS. MENIN:  They are absolutely in

         14  need.  They are urgently in need, and it is so

         15  important.  I cannot stress enough the valuable

         16  importance of the CERT teams, and if they are able

         17  to do the work that they should do, and that the

         18  community wants them to do, they do need more

         19  funding.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Let me just

         21  play, if you will, devil's advocate.

         22                 For the record, turning now to the

         23  area of hospital services, you have cited the need

         24  for special respiratory and other services to serve

         25  the residents of Lower Manhattan.  When I have
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          2  brought that up from time to time, I hear the

          3  response,`Well, people already have their own

          4  doctors, don't they?  Why do we need to bring more

          5  on- line?'

          6                 What would you say to that?

          7                 MS. MENIN:  Well, I think it is

          8  incredibly important for those of us who live in the

          9  area.  We want to have access to good respiratory

         10  care, and I think we are going to see, as

         11  unfortunately we are starting to see with some of

         12  the first responders, we feel very strongly that the

         13  residents, we are going to start to, unfortunately,

         14  see more health problems as a result of the toxins

         15  of 9/11.  That is why we want to be pro active on

         16  that issue.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  All right, well

         18  I thank you, and I just want to conclude, as you

         19  have concluded your testimony by underscoring your

         20  citation of the need to evolve our overall planning

         21  process to change from a catching up mode, where we

         22  bring new units on- line and then we are playing

         23  catching up with respect to critical support, and

         24  integrate the community infrastructure needs as part

         25  of a planning process.
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          2                 I mean, beyond the special issues is

          3  that of general principle or point that has come to

          4  your attention would be beneficial to the community.

          5                 MS. MENIN:  Absolutely, rather than

          6  as we said trying to have to cajole developers to

          7  provide these critically needed services that we,

          8  quite frankly, need in our area.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay well, I

         10  conclude where I began, I thank you very much.

         11                 MS. MENIN:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  I look forward

         13  to continuing as always to work very closely with

         14  you to serve the needs of our constituents.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 MS. MENIN:  Thank you very much,

         17  Chairman Gerson.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  At this point, I

         19  will call upon Dr. Bruce Logan of the New York

         20  Downtown Hospital.  I believe Dr. Logan is the

         21  Executive Director- President?

         22                 DR. LOGAN:  President.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  The President

         24  and Chief Executive officer, okay.

         25                 I just know him as the outstanding
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          2  physician, and key person that he is to go to in all

          3  things pertaining to the hospital.  We thank you for

          4  your work.

          5                 I understand you have a power point?

          6                 DR. LOGAN:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, so I will

          8  direct the attention of the committee and the

          9  audience to the screen to my right, and Dr. Logan,

         10  as we welcome you to Chambers, let me once again

         11  just thank you for reminding us consistently of the

         12  need to pay attention to health care in Lower

         13  Manhattan, and for your truly outstanding work.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 DR. LOGAN:  Let me start, Mr.

         16  Chairman, by thanking you for the opportunity to be

         17  here, and also recognizing Councilman John Liu who

         18  has been a terrific supporter of our hospital for

         19  many years.

         20                 As you mentioned, Downtown Hospital

         21  is the only hospital in Lower Manhattan.  We are a

         22  170- bed hospital, a 911 receiving hospital, have

         23  5,600 ambulance deliveries a year, 33,000 emergency

         24  visits, and we have been growing at about ten

         25  percent a year.
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          2                 We have over 100,000 out- patients

          3  visits, almost 12,000 discharges, 6,000 surgical

          4  procedures, and 2,500 deliveries.  The vast majority

          5  of these deliveries are women from the Chinese

          6  community, actually not only Downtown but from all

          7  over the City.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  As we are making

          9  the technical adjustments, I would just add that the

         10  situation at the Downtown Hospital should be of

         11  special concern to this Council because the case of

         12  an emergency happening here, you are the place we

         13  go.

         14                 DR. LOGAN:  We are it.

         15                 Now, we are a full service teaching

         16  hospital, serving the people of Lower Manhattan.  We

         17  want to be a center of excellence for ambulatory

         18  care, health maintenance, and primary care

         19  education, and a center of excellence for emergency

         20  preparedness and disaster response.

         21                 A major development is our strong

         22  affiliation with New York Presbyterian Health Care

         23  System, and our major value is patient first.  Now,

         24  the New York Presbyterian Health Care System brings

         25  us the following types of coordination.  We are
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          2  coordinating with them, their emergency and

          3  paramedic services, we have submitted to the LMDC a

          4  proposal for a Lower Manhattan Imaging and

          5  Cardiovascular Center, that is a joint proposal

          6  between New York Downtown and New York Presbyterian

          7  Health Center.  We are also working on a stoke

          8  center.

          9                 This next one, Occupational and

         10  Corporate Health, the occupational health issue is

         11  really the respiratory problems. Usually we think of

         12  occupational health as respiratory issues of the

         13  type in exposures are usually occupational, of

         14  course in this area of the city they were more than

         15  occupational, they applied to the residential people

         16  as well, and Downtown Hospital really is the major

         17  provider of safety net services for the Lower

         18  Manhattan area.

         19                 I show you this slide because even

         20  though we are a small hospital, and these are

         21  Department of Health, State Department of Health's

         22  information, this is not from our hospital data, but

         23  it is from the State Department of Health, and it

         24  looks at the reports on potentially preventable

         25  complications, and you will notice that, we were
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          2  then N.Y.U. Downtown Hospital, and this is the most

          3  recent year that I have is 2003, I got at the end of

          4  last year.  You will notice that overall, we have a

          5  decrease of 34 percent of observed complications as

          6  compared to the expected complications.  We have

          7  lower complications in medicine, surgery, and

          8  obstetrics, and it reaches three standard deviations

          9  of significance in the total medical and surgical.

         10                 So, I think that people should feel

         11  confident that the quality of care that is delivered

         12  at the Hospital and is again, and I tell you, that

         13  this is Department of Health data, is comparable to

         14  the best hospitals in New York.

         15                 One of the other things that many of

         16  you may have seen in the papers, you hear that

         17  hospital beds are empty.  There was an article that

         18  talked about the fact that Downtown Hospital was the

         19  hospital that was- really did not have a high

         20  occupancy. I want to show you some data on

         21  discharged patients from the hospital, and some of

         22  this data mirrors Ms. Menin's presentation. If you

         23  look at 1997, we had- a little bit more than 9,500

         24  discharges.  That increased to over 10,000 by 1998,

         25  over 11,000 in 1999, over 12,000 in 2001, and it
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          2  would have been over 13,000, over 12,000 in the year

          3  2000, it would have been higher still in 2001 were

          4  it not for 9/11, where we had a dramatic drop- off.

          5  You can see that 2001 and 2002 were terrible years

          6  in terms of the hospitals' finances, I did not get

          7  into the finances here, for the reason that so much

          8  of the City was completely closed off, and we lost

          9  tens of thousands of workers who were people who

         10  used the hospital.

         11                 So, we have started to rebuild again,

         12  in 2003 we are up to 11,800 and we were down again

         13  in`04 because it was during this period of time

         14  where we were effectuating a separation from N.Y.U.,

         15  and now we are up again in 2005 as we go forward

         16  with New York Presbyterian but far from loosing

         17  discharges, if you compare us to the middle- 90's,

         18  we have gone from 9,500 to almost 12,000 discharges,

         19  so what has happened and why the occupancy is less,

         20  is because we are much more efficient in taking care

         21  of patients.  Hospitals are not good places to be,

         22  and people should be in the hospital only as long as

         23  they need to be, and we have a very, very efficient

         24  program of case management at the hospital, which

         25  keeps the length of stay down.
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          2                 I will be brief going through these

          3  slides but New York Downtown Hospital was really

          4  founded by the merger of two really incredible

          5  hospitals if you look at the history, New York

          6  Infirmary and Beekman Downtown Hospital.

          7                 New York Infirmary was founded by the

          8  first woman physician in this country, the first

          9  woman graduate.  She also founded a medical school

         10  for woman, she trained the first African- American

         11  woman in the country.  She started a nursing school,

         12  and trained nurses for the Civil War, for the Union

         13  Civil war, she was a great abolitionist, and so,

         14  there was a merger of New York Infirmary and then,

         15  in 1920 most everyone here knows, there was a

         16  terrible bombing on Wall Street where there were 38

         17  people killed, and over 300 injured.  This is really

         18  right down the street from us as you look at the

         19  pictures here.  Because of that terrorist bombing,

         20  and people never found out who was responsible but

         21  it was thought to be Bolsheviks or anarchists,

         22  because of that terrorist bombing the Beekman

         23  Hospital was founded in 1922, and the Beekman

         24  Hospital- there were many advances in emergency

         25  medicine.  It was the first voluntary hospital in
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          2  New York City to provide paramedic training, and to

          3  have trained paramedics on the ambulances.  This is

          4  a picture of one of the old ambulances.

          5                 Now unfortunately, the Lower

          6  Manhattan area is a target for terrorist attack, so

          7  there was the 1920 bombing on Wall Street, there was

          8  the Fraunces Tavern bombing in 1975, where there

          9  were four people killed, the World Trade Center

         10  bombing in 1993, and then of course, 9/11.

         11                 This slide really shows how close the

         12  Downtown Hospital is to the World Trade Center.

         13  These are slides from the 1993 bombing, and I am

         14  asked to speak about emergency response and disaster

         15  preparedness, and so forth, in many different

         16  venues.  So, I have done a little bit more research

         17  than I had done on the first World Trade Center

         18  bombing.  That bombing could have been far more

         19  devastating than even 9/11.  There was 1,000 pounds,

         20  or 1,500 pounds of explosives that was only eight

         21  feet from the southern wall of the North Tower, and

         22  the attempt was to blow out that wall so that the

         23  North Tower fell on the South Tower.  Now, had that

         24  been accomplished, and it was not

         25  without- out of the realm of possibility, the
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          2  explosion that was created in the World Trade Center

          3  in 1993, was 150 x 180 feet, and it blew out the

          4  floors for five stories high, and there was of

          5  course smoke that billowed throughout the building

          6  which sent a lot of people to our hospital, but the

          7  real catastrophe would have been if they were

          8  successful in blowing out that wall, and

          9  accomplishing what they had attempted to do.  It

         10  would have resulted in tens of thousands of people

         11  being killed.

         12                 This is just a quick time line of

         13  events on September 11th, and what I want to really

         14  show you is this next slide.  I hope all of you can

         15  see this.  This is our cafeteria at about 10 o'clock

         16  on the morning of 9/11.  This is not the emergency

         17  room, this is the cafeteria that was turned into an

         18  emergency center for the patients who were not as

         19  critically ill.

         20                 On September 11th we received 375

         21  patients who came to the hospital within the first

         22  two hours, 24 patients were admitted, nine emergency

         23  operations that first day, 24 transfers to other

         24  hospitals.  These were some of the severe burns and

         25  very, very bad head injuries, which were the first
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          2  patients to come in.  We had three patients that

          3  were dead on arrival, two subsequent deaths.  We

          4  treated hundreds and hundreds of unregistered

          5  patients.

          6                 Later on in the day, once the

          7  building collapsed and people were running away,

          8  what you saw was terrible respiratory and eye

          9  issues, and also a number of fractured arms, legs,

         10  and so forth, from people injuring themselves

         11  running away.

         12                 We sent 22 physicians to Ground Zero

         13  to assist with triage, and you can see our

         14  ambulance, then we were N.Y.U. Downtown Hospital,

         15  with the fire fighters and so forth down at Ground

         16  Zero.  We provided emergency medical treatment to

         17  over 200 injured fire fighters, police, and rescue

         18  workers, provided literally thousands of meals to

         19  rescue workers, volunteers, victims, and local

         20  residents.  There were no restaurants and so forth

         21  open, the hospitals' cafeteria was really providing

         22  round- the- clock food to residents, and in fact, we

         23  provided medications and home visits to some of the

         24  neighboring facilities, including Southbridge

         25  Towers.  There were many older people trapped in
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          2  their apartments, and I would say one of the great

          3  positive things that happened after 9/11 was the way

          4  the community, particularly our relationship with

          5  the local residential community, many of the

          6  Southbridge people came and helped us out,

          7  volunteered in the hospital, and we likewise, worked

          8  with them to meet the community needs.

          9                 So, the hospital was really the

         10  center of the community response after 9/11 because

         11  we were the first ones to have emergency generators

         12  and emergency power.  So we were a refuge for people

         13  who on the street, and from local residents and so

         14  forth.

         15                 So, what did we learn from this?

         16                 First I think, and this hit me right

         17  away, I never imagined anything like 9/11 happening

         18  in my lifetime.  It just never occurred to me that

         19  anything like that could happen.  So we know that we

         20  must prepare for disasters of far greater magnitude

         21  than we ever previously imagined.  And number two,

         22  hospitals must play a major role in disaster

         23  preparedness and emergency response.  We are in a

         24  sense the first responders.  It was our doctors that

         25  were down at Ground Zero.  It was the hospital that
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          2  everyone was, sort of, coming to for shelter, and

          3  also they were coming to help, which was-

          4  particularly the local residents. So, we must be

          5  prepared for future disasters.

          6                 Now, what did we do to do that?

          7                 What plans did the hospital make?

          8                 We realized that we had a small,

          9  inadequate emergency room, and what we have done is

         10  planned a new emergency room, which is almost

         11  finished.  It is a state- of- the- art emergency,

         12  more than twice the size of the previous emergency

         13  room, and I just want to show you the types of

         14  things that are built into this whole plan.  We went

         15  to Israel to learn how they set up their emergency

         16  rooms to deal with mass casualty events.           I

         17  do not know if people can see this but I showed you

         18  that slide earlier of our cafeteria, that is right

         19  here, that was the cafeteria you saw in the picture,

         20  and at the time, this was a courtyard.  So all along

         21  this wall that was here, we have oxygen and the

         22  ability to set up monitoring equipment.  So a

         23  cafeteria can, again, be turned into- hopefully will

         24  never have to be- that this should ever happen again

         25  but what we have done is made it such that if we had
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          2  to turn this into a crisis area again to treat very

          3  sick patients, there is oxygen and the ability to do

          4  monitoring and so forth that was put into the wall.

          5  In addition,  is we built each one of these rooms,

          6  each one of these rooms is sort of code compliant

          7  for one patient, and in normal times we would have

          8  built it such that there would be oxygen and

          9  monitoring for one patient in each room.  Even

         10  though we only use if for one patient at a time, we

         11  have it set up so that- this was at a great

         12  increased cost- we have oxygen and we have

         13  monitoring for two people, in case we have to ever

         14  deal with an influx of patients either from a

         15  natural disaster or, God forbid, a terrorist type

         16  disaster.

         17                 I hope everybody pays attention at

         18  least to this slide.  This shower curtain, this was

         19  our decontamination center on 9/11.  Can everybody

         20  see this?  This is the decontamination center for

         21  many emergency rooms, something like this.  For

         22  those of you who are Jewish in the audience, it is

         23  more or less like a Suka (phonetic) with tarped

         24  walls here.  I mean, that is what the

         25  decontamination center in many emergency rooms, that
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          2  was what our decontamination center is.

          3                 In our new plan, we built a major

          4  decontamination center, again, modeled after what we

          5  saw in Israel because they unfortunately have built

          6  those types of facilities.

          7                 So with respect to the emergency

          8  department, we have raised $21 out of the $25

          9  million that it costs, and we are hoping, and we

         10  need quite honestly, Mr. Chairman, your support to

         11  get additional funding from either city, state or

         12  federal government to finish this final stage of the

         13  emergency room.  We feel that the types of things

         14  that are put into this emergency room, the

         15  redundancies, the decontamination center, this is

         16  not something that we ever expect to use to see

         17  patients. I hope we never have to turn the shower on

         18  for the decontamination unit except for testing.

         19  But, we feel that this is something that is

         20  absolutely necessary for Lower Manhattan.  This is

         21  the financial capital of the world, and it is the

         22  fastest growing residential area in the City.  We

         23  need this type of facility, and what is amazing to

         24  me, and maybe this is not the place to be talking

         25  about this, but what is amazing to me is that there
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          2  has not been involvement of Homeland Security.  This

          3  is national defense in my opinion, to have something

          4  like this in the facility, in the community.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Doctor, this is

          6  precisely the place to be talking about that.

          7                 DR. LOGAN:  I just got back from

          8  Washington earlier this week where I am making the

          9  same case, and I just do not understand it.  I do

         10  not understand why there is not interest from the

         11  federal government, and more interest from the city

         12  and state government as to what we are doing with

         13  something like a decontamination center that our

         14  hospital is building, probably the most modern one

         15  in the whole area.  There would be some interest in

         16  knowing what we are doing, and having some input

         17  about it, and maybe funding it.

         18                 Finally again, I want to just mention

         19  the fact that what happens when you know things and

         20  you do not act upon them.  One of the areas of our

         21  expertise is emergency preparedness, and I organize

         22  each year an international symposium where I have

         23  had people come from Israel, from Madrid, from

         24  Egypt, a number of places where there has been

         25  terrorist bombings, after the train wreck, the
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          2  terrible terrorist bombing in Madrid, we had people

          3  from their hospitals, and I have people regularly

          4  from Sharecksedic (phonetic) in Israel, and we even

          5  had someone from Egypt to talk about the bombing

          6  that took place in Egypt last year, and of course

          7  they have had most recently, just last week, another

          8  terrible bombing.

          9                 What we decided to do last year, in

         10  terms of putting together the agenda was, most of

         11  the time we were talking about terrorist events and

         12  then of course, the terrible Tsunami occurred, and

         13  in putting together the speakers for this talk, I

         14  said we have got to get someone from the United

         15  Nations to talk about the Tsunami relief effort, and

         16  what that was like.

         17                 Then we also thought, well what is

         18  the place in the country where there is most likely

         19  could be a flood?  And what came up was New Orleans.

         20    So six months before Hurricane Katrina, this

         21  agenda was put together and you will note that, and

         22  this is circled, one of the talks was preparing for

         23  catastrophic flood in New Orleans, and the speaker

         24  was Art Jones and he did in fact come, division

         25  chief disaster recovery division- the Louisiana
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          2  Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness.  They

          3  knew that there was going to be preparing for

          4  catastrophic flood. They knew it was coming, I mean,

          5  eventually.  They knew what steps could have been

          6  taken, and it would have been very expensive,

          7  everybody knows, to shore up those levees would have

          8  been a billion dollars or two billion dollars.  How

          9  many maybe hundreds of billions of dollars of

         10  devastation was done to the country because of the

         11  flooding in New Orleans.

         12                 We hope that no terrorist attacks,

         13  the type of terrorist bombings that we see

         14  throughout the world occur in New York.  We hope and

         15  pray that that does not happen.  Unfortunately from

         16  the history that I have shown you, this area is the

         17  target. I mean, going back to 1920, and then 1975,

         18  to 1993, 2001, unfortunately they are getting closer

         19  and closer together, we need to be prepared for

         20  that.  We need a strong emergency room, and that is

         21  why we are doing what it is we are doing with the

         22  emergency room.

         23                 In addition, of course, we want to

         24  point out that we are the only hospital in

         25  Manhattan.  We are here, this is the World Trade
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          2  Center, this is our hospital.  This is the closest

          3  hospital up here.  This is St. Vincent's, and there

          4  is Bellevue, and Cabrini, and HJD.  Look what we are

          5  surrounded by in terms of the financial capital of

          6  the world.

          7                 So, not only is it an issue of

          8  disaster preparedness, it is the growing population.

          9    It is the needs of the people that live down here,

         10  also the growing Chinese population that we need to

         11  maintain our strength and continue to grow, and that

         12  is one of the reasons we joined the New York

         13  Presbyterian Health System, and that they are

         14  helping us with that.

         15                 That completes my official

         16  presentation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Well Dr. Logan,

         18  thank you very much for that sombering but important

         19  presentation.

         20                 Just before my colleague and I turn

         21  to a few questions, just one housekeeping note.

         22                 I believe we are being joined in

         23  progress by witnesses who will be testifying

         24  shortly.  As you arrive, if you do plan on

         25  testifying, you need to fill out a witness card with

                                                            46

          1  LOWER MANHATTAN REDEVELOPMENT

          2  the Sergeant- At- Arms, at the desk to my left.

          3                 So please, if you do plan to testify,

          4  be sure to come up and fill out the card and the

          5  Sergeant will help you.

          6                 Dr. Logan, could you tell us, just

          7  review for the record, roughly how much funding have

          8  you received from- through the Department of

          9  Homeland Security for preparedness projects?

         10                 DR. LOGAN:  Zero.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  That must be

         12  because you have received funds from some other

         13  division of the federal government.

         14                 So how much have you received from

         15  the federal government overall for this?

         16                 DR. LOGAN:  I think it is somewhere

         17  between, between all government funding, is

         18  somewhere between $800 thousand and $1.2 million, I

         19  believe that is the number.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Eight- hundred

         21  thousand to $1.2 --?

         22                 DR. LOGAN:  Eight hundred thousand to

         23  $1.2 million, I think between all the different

         24  government fundings. We really have not received-

         25  that is one of the reasons I was in Washington.  I
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          2  mean, it just amazes me that, as I say, it is not

          3  only the funding.  It is the interest.  It is the

          4  planning.  There should be interest from people

          5  building this kind of facility in Lower Manhattan.

          6                 So we have not received the funding

          7  for that.  We really have not received it from

          8  anybody.  We have put in a proposal to the LMDC,

          9  which also has not been acted upon at the present

         10  time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And again aside

         12  from that proposal, have you received, which is

         13  pending, have you received any funds from the Lower

         14  Manhattan Development Corporation?

         15                 DR. LOGAN:  No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Well all of that

         17  boggles my mind as well.  I can assure you this

         18  committee will be following up.

         19                 You heard the testimony earlier by

         20  our community board chair with respect to

         21  anticipated resident health need, with respect to

         22  pulmonary health and other health needs as a result

         23  of the 9/11 environmental tragedy.

         24                 Could you just address those

         25  concerns, and share with us any thoughts as to how
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          2  your facility might be situated with appropriate

          3  financial support to address those needs?

          4                 DR. LOGAN:  I think the recent death

          5  of the police officer who was working on- site, I

          6  think has raised everybody's awareness of this

          7  issue.

          8                 We will be working with New York

          9  Presbyterian to set up an occupational health

         10  program for the Downtown area, which is also to

         11  look- and when I say occupational health, it is not

         12  only about the respiratory issues but there is going

         13  to be 10,000- 12,000 construction workers down here,

         14  so that we feel that there is a real- usually this

         15  type of thing, respiratory problems, comes under the

         16  occupational health heading, even though this is not

         17  occupational health, it is a special situation.  And

         18  we will be working with the--.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Excuse me

         20  doctor, could I ask the folks in the hall to the

         21  left, can I ask the Sergeant to kind of maintain

         22  some order in the hall outside of the Chamber?

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 DR. LOGAN:  There is- I would like to

         25  credit Mt. Sinai in the sense that they do have a
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          2  program that they started with, I think, tens of

          3  millions of dollars to start to screen people, but I

          4  have not heard very much about where they are going

          5  with that at this stage.  I know that Mt. Sinai did

          6  do some work in this area, but I think that Ms.

          7  Menin was right on target in some of her concerns.

          8  Not only about the respiratory issues, but her

          9  others points that she was making about how rapidly

         10  growing the Downtown area is, and the need that we

         11  assure appropriate health care facilities for the

         12  area.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Just speaking

         14  for a moment as a physician, in your expert opinion

         15  as a physician independently of your role with the

         16  hospital, in your expert opinion, is it wise, does

         17  it make sense to bring on- line specialized

         18  facilities in the area of respiratory/occupational

         19  health to deal with possible resident concerns?

         20                 DR. LOGAN:  I think at this time the

         21  most important thing is really registering people,

         22  having them examined, and followed.  I must tell you

         23  that I do see, there is a certain type of post- 9/11

         24  cough that we see.  I have not seen the very, very

         25  serious type of respiratory problems that this
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          2  police officer who had terrible exposure, obviously

          3  suffered from the 9/11 exposures but as Julie said,

          4  these types of problems, particularly with inhaled

          5  pollutants and so forth, frequently affect people

          6  later on, after a number of years, and I think what

          7  is really going to be important to do, is to follow

          8  this.

          9                 We are seeing now all of the

         10  information about the people who have gotten thyroid

         11  cancer following Chernobyl for instance.  That is in

         12  the news all the time, and I think that it is going

         13  to be very, very important to make sure that that

         14  database is there, that people have baseline exams

         15  and then are followed over time if they develop

         16  symptoms or problems.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Let me ask you

         18  one other question about a kind of, your vision for

         19  health care here in Lower Manhattan.  It occurs to

         20  me that your hospital, if not unique, certainly one

         21  of the few with respect to the diversity of the

         22  population you serve.

         23                 DR. LOGAN:  Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And that

         25  includes you being the hospital of choice for many
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          2  folks in the Chinatown community, and the Battery

          3  Park community--

          4                 DR. LOGAN:  That is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: -- and the

          6  Tribeca.  It strikes me that you might be uniquely

          7  or especially suited to kind of bring on- line, if

          8  you will, a combination of- or a health care

          9  facility or health care procedures which combine

         10  traditional with Asian medical, traditional

         11  European, Western medical with Asian medical

         12  traditions, and I am just wondering if you have any

         13  thoughts along those lines?

         14                 DR. LOGAN:  We actually do have quite

         15  a large acupuncture program in the hospital.  We

         16  have a number of physicians on staff who are trained

         17  in acupuncture.

         18                 This sort of integrative medicine, I

         19  think, is a very, very important thing to look at in

         20  the future, and one of the particularly important

         21  things is that we look at the knowledge and types of

         22  herbs that are used by the community, and many of

         23  our patients in the Chinese community come in to the

         24  hospital having taken many medicines and herbs and

         25  so forth, and there are some of these things which
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          2  are helpful to people.  We are probably in a unique

          3  position because we have so many, not only patients

          4  of Chinese background, but so many Chinese

          5  physicians who have been trained both in this

          6  country and in China, who have knowledge about this.

          7

          8                 So, this is an area that we should be

          9  looking at, and you many know that Columbia

         10  Presbyterian and Dr. Oz has in cardiology.

         11                 So, we will be working with them on

         12  developing this type of program, and there is two

         13  aspects to it.  One is the sort of massage therapy,

         14  acupuncture, other types of issues for heart

         15  patients that are hospitalized, and also as an

         16  outpatient facility, and you may know that we have

         17  25,000 square feet of space that will by ours in the

         18  new building that is going to be in what was our

         19  former parking lot.  We hope to have in addition to

         20  a woman's health center there, also an occupational

         21  health and possibly an integrative medicine program

         22  in that space.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Finally, is it a

         24  fair assessment to say returning to the statistics

         25  sited earlier, that with the additional population,
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          2  both permanent and transitory anticipated, that your

          3  hospital will need to be in a growth mode to meet

          4  normal anticipated demand, and that that growth mode

          5  should require a degree of public support?

          6                 Is that a fair assessment?

          7                 DR. LOGAN:  I think that is an

          8  absolutely accurate assessment, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay Dr. Logan,

         10  and actually, one last follow up.

         11                 Would you be supportive, and I know

         12  you and I just for the record have had this

         13  conversation, but I want to ask on the record, of a

         14  formalized, if you will, study to link anticipated

         15  need and growth in the community with the need for

         16  public financial support to your hospital and the

         17  other facilities, which would serve the community in

         18  an integrated fashion?

         19                 Would that help us plan for the

         20  future?

         21                 DR. LOGAN:  I think it would, and one

         22  of the other things that I think you will see a lot

         23  of, particularly with respect to some of the Berger

         24  Commission findings, is that hospitals like ours

         25  that provide safety net services, which are
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          2  obstetrics, clinics, emergency room, these are not

          3  well or generously funded by the rates that we

          4  receive from Medicare and Medicaid, or from HMO's.

          5  I mean, there is a massive transfer of wealth that

          6  is taking place from the community, and by the

          7  community I mean hospitals and so forth to the

          8  HMO's.  I mean it is just a massive transfer of

          9  wealth.  They make more and more money each year,

         10  and hospitals, not only ours, but other hospitals

         11  also run at big deficits.

         12                 The only hospitals that do not run at

         13  deficits are the ones that do this high technical

         14  type of work, which we do not anticipate doing, and

         15  we do not want to do anything that someone else does

         16  better.  So, we are not going to do heart

         17  transplants, we are not going to do coronary

         18  bypasses, and we are not looking to be- to do brain

         19  surgery unless of course someone comes in with a

         20  terrible injury and needs an emergency operation.

         21  That is better done at a tertiary care facility, and

         22  those types of procedures are very, very highly

         23  reimbursed and have a tremendous contribution

         24  margin.

         25                 I am going to give you just one
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          2  example from our hospital.  When we had an analysis

          3  from Cap Gemini, if a patient comes in and has a

          4  vascular surgery procedure, and that is something

          5  that can be done at our hospital, our Chief of

          6  Surgery was the head of vascular surgery at

          7  Northshore before he came to our hospital.  Our

          8  contribution margin, that is above direct cost, is

          9  $15,000 for that case.  A newborn is $1,000.  So,

         10  that $1,000 has to pay for other allocated costs and

         11  overhead, so you can understand a hospital like ours

         12  that has such a high percentage of deliveries, and

         13  these are deliveries, as I say, for many of the

         14  patients in the community, and many Chinese patients

         15  choose to deliver at our hospital who do not even

         16  live in the community.  It barely covers the cost of

         17  it.

         18                 On the other hand, vascular surgery,

         19  cardiac surgery, those types of procedure have a

         20  very, very high reimbursement.  So, this is

         21  something that has to be looked at, at the state and

         22  federal level, and I think is finally being

         23  addressed.  That hospitals like ours usually run

         24  deficits because of that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  All right, thank

                                                            56

          1  LOWER MANHATTAN REDEVELOPMENT

          2  you for your testimony.

          3                 DR. LOGAN:  Thank you again, I

          4  appreciate the opportunity to- and all the time you

          5  have given me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  No, no, it is

          7  important and you have concluded on an important

          8  point, and important structural issue, which again

          9  could be addressed at least at the local level by

         10  the type of study which I have raised.

         11                 But Dr. Logan, thank you for being

         12  here and thank you for your ongoing work.

         13                 We are joined by representatives from

         14  very distinguished colleagues in government whom I

         15  will call next, and with apologies to the

         16  representatives, I need to just as I announced

         17  earlier, that I would have to do at some point, step

         18  out very briefly just next door.

         19                 So, I will be hearing your testimony

         20  with one ear but the committee will be chaired by my

         21  very able colleague, Council Member Liu during the

         22  interim, but I would like to call Felicia Feinerman,

         23  representing our borough president, Scott Stringer,

         24  Matt Viggiano representing our state senator, Martin

         25  Connor, and Alyssa Ziegler representing one of our
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          2  assembly members, my assembly member, Deborah Glick.

          3                 Thank you all for being here.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

          5  Chairman Gerson, and I want to thank the panel for

          6  attending today's hearing.

          7                 Please proceed.

          8                 MS. FEINERMAN:  Good morning, my name

          9  if Felicia Feinerman, and I will be reading the

         10  testimony of Manhattan Borough President, Scott

         11  Stringer who could not be here today.

         12                 Thank you Chairman Gerson and Council

         13  Member Liu for the opportunity to testify on the

         14  infrastructure needs of Lower Manhattan.

         15                 With office conversions and new high-

         16  rise residential towers, Community Board 1 has the

         17  fastest growing residential population in New York

         18  City.  In the post- September 11th renewal of Lower

         19  Manhattan, it is evident people are flocking to live

         20  here.

         21                 However, many services and resources

         22  such as schools, hospitals and public space are

         23  already overtaxed in this area.  New schools,

         24  hospitals and increased park space must be a part of

         25  the continued development process.
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          2                 As with all our neighborhoods, we

          3  need to stop looking at projects one by one, and

          4  begin linking the effects of development together in

          5  order to better plan for our city.  My office has

          6  made long term planning a priority in the Uniform

          7  Land Use Review Process (ULURP), which we have a

          8  comment in.  Lower Manhattan needs this type of long

          9  term planning to accommodate increased residential

         10  population.

         11                 First, we must plan for school

         12  construction based on the long term needs of the

         13  community.  Currently, P.S. 234 in Tribeca is at 120

         14  percent of its building capacity. Unfortunately,

         15  this overcrowded state is the rule, not the

         16  exception, for local elementary schools.  The New

         17  York City Department of Education's plan for the

         18  P.S. 234 Annex and Beekman school construction

         19  provides some relief for to this condition.

         20                 In addition, the DOE capital plan

         21  includes the needed construction of three additional

         22  schools, which are not yet sited, and will provide

         23  and estimated 1,750 additional classroom seats in

         24  Lower Manhattan.

         25                 Although the construction of the
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          2  Beekman School and the P.S. 234 Annex will help, it

          3  will not be enough to fill Lower Manhattan's broader

          4  needs for elementary and middle schools.

          5  Specifically, the East Side of Lower Manhattan has

          6  no elementary school below the Brooklyn Bridge,

          7  while the Seaport area continues to boom.  The

          8  Beekman Street School is scheduled to be a K- 12

          9  school, which will alleviate some of the need for

         10  elementary and middle school seats, but the West

         11  side of Lower Manhattan would greatly benefit from

         12  the creation of a middle school.

         13                 In addition, when the City sites

         14  locations for the three new schools in DOE's Capital

         15  Plan, it is vital that we track the construction

         16  trends of residential building in order to fit the

         17  planning of the schools to the needs of the changing

         18  area.

         19                 Furthermore, we must find a balance

         20  between providing existing students, reduced class

         21  sizes and providing seats for new students.

         22                 Second, the growth our health

         23  services is not keeping pace with the growing

         24  residential population of Lower Manhattan.  With the

         25  only major full service hospital in the area at the
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          2  Seaport, much of Lower Manhattan could benefit from

          3  more health care options.  Access to proper medical

          4  care is a necessity for all New Yorkers, especially

          5  families.  While residential growth is assured,

          6  there are no assurances of growth in medical

          7  facilities at a time that hospitals are being slated

          8  for closure across the state.  This is a dangerous

          9  situation which must be closely monitored and

         10  addressed.

         11                 Third, with such a burgeoning

         12  residential population, I would be remiss not to

         13  highlight the need for more park space in Lower

         14  Manhattan.  A rapidly growing population will

         15  greatly add to the number of people enjoying our

         16  public parks. Green space is a key component in

         17  every neighborhood, and we should work hard to

         18  create more public space into the ongoing

         19  development of Lower Manhattan.

         20                 I look forward to working together to

         21  improve the quality of life for current and future

         22  residents of our borough.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  testify on the infrastructure needs of Lower

         25  Manhattan.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

          3  Ms. Feinerman.

          4                 Next we will hear from Ms. Ziegler.

          5                 MS. ZIEGLER:  Thank you Council

          6  Member Liu.

          7                 My name is Alyssa Ziegler.  I am here

          8  representing Assembly Member Deborah Glick.

          9  Unfortunately, she could not be here with us this

         10  morning, so I will read her testimony on her behalf.

         11                 Lower Manhattan is one of the fastest

         12  growing residential neighborhoods in New York City

         13  with an unprecedented amount of construction and

         14  development.  Much of this activity is a result of

         15  the rebuilding effort in Lower Manhattan post

         16  September 11th, which has attempted to create a

         17  revitalized, mixed- use community balancing culture,

         18  commercial and residential interests.

         19                 It is disheartening that nearly five

         20  years after the terrorist attacks in 2001, the

         21  rebuilding process has encountered setbacks and

         22  delays, partly due to the disagreements of various

         23  parties over the vision for a revitalized Lower

         24  Manhattan.  Throughout the contentious debate

         25  surrounding the World Trade Center site and major
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          2  construction projects like the Fulton Street Transit

          3  Center, it seems that the City has failed to

          4  develope a comprehensive plan for our community,

          5  instead exhausting their energies on narrow battles

          6  and misguided development strategies. I urge the

          7  city council to work with the administration in

          8  creating a comprehensive redevelopment plan, taking

          9  into consideration the infrastructure needs of our

         10  community while also moving forward with the major

         11  construction necessary to revitalize Lower

         12  Manhattan.

         13                 The recent debacle over two Lower

         14  Manhattan schools spurred by the Mayor's regrettable

         15  budget decision to remove funding for planned

         16  educational institutions throughout the City is just

         17  one example of the administration's failure to

         18  provide the necessary infrastructure planning to

         19  rebuild Lower Manhattan.

         20                 Although these schools should be

         21  built on schedule as a result of recent budget

         22  allocations by the State, it was poor public policy

         23  for Mayor Bloomberg to renege on his agreement with

         24  the local community, revealing a lack of

         25  understanding of the current and future needs of
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          2  Lower Manhattan residents and eroding the trust

          3  between his administration and the public.

          4                 Access to quality public education is

          5  a fundamental right of every resident of New York

          6  City, and should be made a priority in any

          7  rebuilding plan that is developed for our community.

          8                 In addition to schools, the large

          9  influx of residents that will accompany planned

         10  development in Lower Manhattan will require an

         11  increase in community services and amenities,

         12  including parks, cultural institutions, health care

         13  services, grocery stores and first responders.

         14                 I urge the City  to consider these

         15  vital needs and encourage the Lower Manhattan

         16  Development Corporation, which has already allocated

         17  funds for parks and cultural institutions, to work

         18  closely with the City in developing a plan that will

         19  not only improve Lower Manhattan today, but will

         20  create sustainable development for the future.

         21                 As for business interests downtown,

         22  it is important to keep in mind that the WTC site

         23  will not be the only commercial space in Lower

         24  Manhattan.  Small businesses, which make our

         25  neighborhood a vibrant and desirable place to live,
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          2  are critically important to developing a revitalized

          3  Lower Manhattan.

          4                 Unfortunately, the shocking stories

          5  of gross mis allocation of federal and state post-

          6  9/11 small business aid have shed light on the

          7  continued struggle of many downtown businesses.

          8                 More recently, the Metropolitan

          9  Transportation Authority's inappropriate handling of

         10  small businesses being displaced for the Fulton

         11  Street Transit Center displays the glaring absence

         12  of consideration for small businesses in the

         13  rebuilding effort downtown.  These establishments

         14  served the needs of Lower Manhattan residents prior

         15  to September 11th, and suffered traumatic losses

         16  following the terrorist attacks.  Yet they stayed

         17  downtown, remaining committed to preserving the

         18  character of Lower Manhattan and rebuilding our

         19  neighborhood.

         20                 Not only is it essential to attract

         21  new businesses, it is crucial that existing small

         22  businesses be retained and the assistance they need

         23  should be forthcoming from the MTA, the city and the

         24  state.  These parties must work collaboratively in

         25  order to ensure that small businesses play a vital

                                                            65

          1  LOWER MANHATTAN REDEVELOPMENT

          2  role int he revitalization and rebuilding effort

          3  downtown.

          4                 Lastly, I would like to touch on the

          5  issue of zoning, and the need for a comprehensive

          6  plan that reflects the character of our

          7  neighborhood.

          8                 As you are well aware, North Tribeca

          9  is in desperate need of a rezoning plan and the

         10  community has repeatedly called on City Planning to

         11  move forward with this project.  Although North

         12  Tribeca may seem outside the scope of this hearing,

         13  rezoning this neighborhood will have implications

         14  for all of Lower Manhattan.  The increased amount of

         15  traffic and residents, including school- age

         16  children, that North Tribeca rezoning is sure to

         17  attract will have a direct impact on Lower

         18  Manhattan's infrastructure needs, requiring planning

         19  to be adjusted accordingly.

         20                 I urge the city to expedite a

         21  comprehensive and reasonable rezoning plan that can

         22  be incorporated into a development strategy for

         23  Lower Manhattan.

         24                 It is imperative that the city create

         25  sustainable development for Lower Manhattan, and
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          2  consider the needs and interests of residents as

          3  they come to play a more active role downtown.  In

          4  order to achieve this, and development strategy must

          5  integrate community services and amenities in the

          6  planning phase.

          7                 I would like to thank the city

          8  council for recognizing the sensitive nature of this

          9  important and timely issue, and urge the members to

         10  be strong advocates for intelligent and rational

         11  planning to rebuild Lower Manhattan as a diverse,

         12  vibrant mixed- use community.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         15  Ms. Ziegler.

         16                 Mr. Viggiano.

         17                 MR. VIGGIANO:  Good morning.  Thank

         18  you, Mr. Chair, Council Member Liu.

         19                 I appreciate the opportunity to speak

         20  on behalf of Senator Connor.  The Senator was

         21  attempting to be here this morning, but could not

         22  get out of several meetings in Brooklyn that are of

         23  vital importance to our Brooklyn Bridge Park

         24  Development Plan.

         25                 I am here today to present testimony
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          2  of behalf of the Senator.  I would like to thank you

          3  for providing this opportunity to hear the

          4  priorities envisioned for Lower Manhattan by my

          5  constituents, workers, and my elected colleagues,

          6  and community members.

          7                 Since September 11th and even before,

          8  Lower Manhattan has been experiencing a rapid

          9  growth, growth in the number of businesses and

         10  residencies, and I have also seen a rise in the

         11  economically and culturally diverse groups of this

         12  neighborhood.  These new residents have started to

         13  raise children.  The number of new families moving

         14  into the community increases every day, and it is

         15  critical now for these families to enjoy the

         16  community services that they need for Lower

         17  Manhattan to continue to thrive.

         18                 The Governor, the Mayor, the

         19  Community Board, and families that come to Lower

         20  Manhattan envision a 24- hour, seven day a week

         21  community that has cultural activities in the

         22  evenings and on weekends.  But what they also need

         23  is a strong compliment of hospitals and schools.

         24  The children at P.S. 234 attend a school that is so

         25  overcrowded that they have to remove vital
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          2  educational programs and tools in order to provide

          3  simple classroom space for the influx of new

          4  students.

          5                 Part of this problem will be

          6  alleviated by the creation of the Beekman Street

          7  School, and the building soon to be constructed by

          8  Forest City Ratner.  However, these projects are

          9  only a temporary ease to the crunch.

         10                 The city needs to look more closely

         11  at other upcoming sites in order to provide the

         12  School Construction Authority with better siting

         13  opportunities for new schools.  In fact, there is a

         14  New York Sun article which shows on the map grid

         15  just how many of these commercial facilities are

         16  coming, and residences are being built today and how

         17  we are going to need as much space as possible for

         18  schools and health care facilities.

         19                 In addition, it is imperative to

         20  continue support the efforts of those seeking to

         21  restore the billions that are owed to the children

         22  of New York City through the Campaign for Fiscal

         23  Equity.  There is a formula that we believe for

         24  community building and creating opportunities for

         25  our children's education and is a vital component of
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          2  the equation.

          3                 Just as vital as educational

          4  opportunities is the need for more health care

          5  services.  Lower Manhattan is host to numerous

          6  retirement communities in addition to the new

          7  families that move to the area daily.   With the

          8  emergence of new families and the needs middle- aged

          9  and seniors increasing, it is crucial that the city

         10  and state provide the kind of health care services

         11  that a growing community needs, and I thank Dr.

         12  Logan for pointing out how lacking Lower Manhattan

         13  is in terms of dollars from Homeland Security and

         14  other sources for these needs.  I think it is

         15  shocking.  The closest hospital, St. Vincent's, is

         16  on the verge of bankruptcy, and cannot possibly meet

         17  the demand of its residents in the East and West

         18  Village area, while taking any overload from

         19  Downtown Hospital.

         20                 While New York Downtown Hospital has

         21  recently come into funds which are being used to

         22  upgrade certain facilities within the hospital, and

         23  to create new facilities to address the needs of the

         24  growing community, it is imperative that more health

         25  care facilities be opened to deal with the number of
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          2  residents that are moving to Lower Manhattan in the

          3  coming years.

          4                 One way we feel that this lack of

          5  facilities could be addressed is to open satellite

          6  clinics akin to the type that is being operated in

          7  South Bridge Towers currently by New York Downtown

          8  Hospital.  Such facilities would be able to address

          9  the short- term health care needs of the surrounding

         10  communities, as well as the long- term care of

         11  adults and children that are popping up due to

         12  exposure to World Trade Center toxins.  We believe

         13  that there is a great need for this, and we look

         14  forward to working with city and state agencies in

         15  helping to bring about these sources of funding.

         16                 Thank you very much.  I appreciate

         17  the opportunity to testify.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         19  very much, Mr. Viggiano.

         20                 I want to thank the panel

         21  representing Senator Conner, Assembly Member Glick,

         22  and Manhattan Borough President, Scott Stringer.

         23                 Thanks for your time today.

         24                 MR. VIGGIANO:  Thank you very much.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Next we will
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          2  call upon a panel consisting of Kevin Doherty,

          3  Andrew Weinstein, Ann DeFalco, and Marianna James.

          4                 We are about to be re- joined by our

          5  distinguished Chairman, Council Member Alan Gerson.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  I will let you

          7  all figure out the order.

          8                 You need each to state your name, and

          9  any position relevant for the record.

         10                 MR. DOHERTY:  My name if Kevin

         11  Doherty, and I am the PTA President of P.S. 234, and

         12  I appreciate the opportunity to come today and

         13  provide testimony on this important, critical issue.

         14                 I am also the parent of three

         15  children.  I have been a resident of Lower Manhattan

         16  for over 16 years.  But today I speak to you

         17  primarily as the PTA President.

         18                 As Julie Menin mentioned earlier,

         19  there has been tremendous growth downtown.  A

         20  tremendous influx of residents post- the year 2000,

         21  and specifically P.S. 234 has been the beneficiary

         22  of a lot of that growth.

         23                 Unfortunately, the growth in the

         24  residential population has meant the loss of our

         25  Pre- K Program.  We no longer have room to offer
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          2  Pre- K to the residents of the neighborhood. In

          3  addition, we have lost our computer room to make

          4  that into a classroom, and we are on the crux of

          5  loosing both our science and art room in order to

          6  have enough classroom space for the kids that are

          7  scheduled to attend the school.

          8                 As Julie mentioned, there has been

          9  tremendous growth, and over the last few years there

         10  has been hundreds of millions of dollars, frankly

         11  probably billions of dollars invested to bring new,

         12  incremental residential development to Lower

         13  Manhattan by different government entities.  There

         14  have been Liberty Bonds, LMDC Grants, tax rebates

         15  and benefits.  We have had the sale of city- owned

         16  real estate to developers, and a multitude of other

         17  incentives to bring growth to Lower Manhattan.     As

         18  a former resident of California, it reminds me a

         19  little bit of the California land rush of the 1840's

         20  and 50's, when all of a sudden everybody is trying

         21  to develop a piece of Lower Manhattan.

         22                 During the most recent years, there

         23  has been little or no urban planning to ensure the

         24  needs of a growing and thriving residential

         25  community are met.  Planning has only occurred on a
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          2  project- by- project basis, and not on a broader,

          3  comprehensive community level.  With thousands of

          4  families moving downtown to take advantage of these

          5  new developments, there is a tremendous need to

          6  ensure there is sufficient classroom space for all

          7  the families that are coming downtown, and for those

          8  families that have already made their home downtown,

          9  too.

         10                 Downtown schools, especially the

         11  primary schools, Pre- K to 5th Grade, and middle

         12  schools are already busting at the seems and

         13  overcrowded.  Now is the time to ensure that one of

         14  the needs of downtown's families is designed into

         15  this unprecedented subsidized growth.

         16                 In addition, there is a tremendous

         17  opportunity with the newfound opportunity at

         18  Governor's Island to develop additional educational

         19  facilities on the Island, including a high school.

         20                 As we move ahead, I would ask the

         21  committee to ensure that the community

         22  infrastructure keeps pace with residential growth,

         23  and that residential growth is tied to corresponding

         24  growth and community services like schools,

         25  hospitals, parks and police, fire and transportation
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          2  services and the like.

          3                 I thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you, and

          5  who wants to go next?  Mr. Weinstein?

          6                 No, no, Mr. Doherty, I would ask each

          7  of you to remain until we hear from everyone and

          8  then we will- oh, just switching seats, okay.  We

          9  just do not want to loose you.

         10                 MR. DOHERTY:  No, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  You are welcome.

         12                 MR. WEINSTEIN:  Okay, I would just

         13  like to say before I begin.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Name and

         15  position because we are making--.

         16                 MR. WEINSTEIN:  Before I even get to

         17  that, my remarks are not merely for this Committee

         18  but for the entire city council, and for all elected

         19  officials who have some say in Lower Manhattan

         20  development.

         21                 My name is Andrew Weinstein.  I am a

         22  parent of two children at P.S. 234, and a member of

         23  the P.S. 234 School Leadership Team.

         24                 I have lived in this neighborhood for

         25  28 years, and as a concerned resident I have watched
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          2  with increasing alarm as residential development

          3  downtown has spiraled out of control with no

          4  planning for adequate school facilities.

          5                 P.S. 234 is currently at 120 percent

          6  of capacity, but new students keep arriving.  The

          7  other schools in the neighborhood are also straining

          8  to accommodate their growing enrollments.

          9            Two years ago at P.S. 234, we had to give

         10  up our computer room for an additional classroom.

         11  Last year as an S.L.T. Member, I was one of those

         12  who had to make the painful decision to eliminate

         13  our superb Pre- K Program to make room for another

         14  classroom.

         15                 This coming year we will have to

         16  sacrifice our science or art room for another

         17  classroom.  Small group remedial assistance for

         18  students needing extra help is being conducted in

         19  storage closets and hallways.

         20                 The very essence of what makes P.S.

         21  234 an excellent school is being eroded.  We have

         22  run out of room but new students keep arriving.

         23                 We refuse to stand by and let our

         24  school and our children suffer while developers tout

         25  P.S. 234 as an enticement for new tenants when it is
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          2  already bursting at the seems.

          3                 When the city- owned properties,

          4  Sites 5B and 5C, to the west and south of P.S. 234

          5  were sold for luxury residential development,

          6  unaffordable to most New Yorkers, many of us were

          7  outraged.  We watch as developers are given tax

          8  breaks and Liberty Bonds to build luxury housing

          9  yielding enormous profits, while needed

         10  infrastructure is neglected.

         11                 What we need are schools, parks and

         12  playgrounds, not high- rise apartment buildings or

         13  multi- million dollar residences.

         14                 The few small parks and open spaces

         15  downtown are so hemmed in that in most spaces for

         16  children to play, do not receive direct sunlight for

         17  more than a few hours each day.

         18                 The Bloomberg administration has

         19  intensively encouraged residential development in

         20  every square foot of Lower Manhattan without any

         21  planning for where incoming children will go to

         22  school.

         23                 Along with the building and

         24  conversations currently underway, totaling thousands

         25  of apartments, there are now proposals for 700,000
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          2  square feet of residential development at the World

          3  Trade Center site, as well as 2.7 million square

          4  feet of residential development in the Greenwich

          5  South area without any stated plans for a single new

          6  school.

          7                 We demand a halt to residential

          8  construction downtown without guaranteed, fully-

          9  funded new schools, to be built and opened before

         10  any new residences are occupied.

         11                 It is time for you, as elected

         12  officials, to take a stand.  Development must not be

         13  allowed to continue without sufficient school space

         14  being created at the same time to absorb new demand.

         15                 I would like to know what specific

         16  steps you intend to take to ensure that the children

         17  of this community, as well as the children who will

         18  soon be residing here, have proper school

         19  facilities.  I would like you to go on record with a

         20  pledge to refuse approval to any new residential

         21  project that does not included guaranteed, fully-

         22  funded new school space timed to open concurrently

         23  with occupancy by new residents.

         24                 I would also like you to go on record

         25  with a pledge that no residential building that does
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          2  not already have a Certificate of Occupancy will be

          3  zoned for any school that is currently over 100

          4  percent capacity.  Downtown schools have run out of

          5  room, but new students keep arriving.

          6                 It is your responsibility to find new

          7  space for them.

          8                 I would just like to add to that, Mr.

          9  Chairman, I believe you have worked very strongly to

         10  help us in this regard, and that is why I say my

         11  remarks are intended not merely for you and your

         12  committee, but beyond you to the city council, to

         13  the Borough President, to the Assembly and the State

         14  Senate, and of course, to the Bloomberg

         15  Administration, which I believe has really fallen

         16  far short here.

         17                 But unfortunately, the need is

         18  washing over us, so thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  No, no, no,

         20  thank you and I share your feeling that all of the

         21  above, all that you mentioned, need to hear and heed

         22  your very compelling testimony.

         23                      So, we will now hear from Ms.

         24  DeFalco, thank you.

         25                 MS. DE FALCO:  Thank you for this
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          2  opportunity.

          3                 My name is Ann Marie De Falco.  I am

          4  a C.B. 1 public member of the Youth and Education

          5  Committee, and a resident of South Bridge Towers.

          6                 I was raised here, and now raising

          7  two children in downtown Manhattan.  In 35 years,

          8  the educational and recreational needs have been

          9  frozen.  They stood still.  I really feel they have

         10  been overlooked, not even ignored, just completely

         11  overlooked.

         12                 For generations, the demographics of

         13  Lower Manhattan did not include schools or

         14  hospitals.  It was always considered a financial

         15  area.  Well, that is totally absurd.  We have

         16  changed, and we are way behind schedule.

         17                 Residential properties have invaded

         18  our area, and educational needs as well as health

         19  care needs are many steps behind.  It is absurd for

         20  me to believe for such a modern America, that we

         21  behave so stone- aged.  We are generations behind.

         22                 The Seaport area, the renovation,

         23  must consider the recreation needs of residents of

         24  Lower Manhattan, east of City Hall.  Our recreation

         25  needs should not be ignored while we revitalize the
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          2  Seaport.

          3                 I also have two children in 234, and

          4  this is largely because as an East Side resident, I

          5  have never had a choice of a school other than going

          6  west.  So, I am a strong advocate for the Beacon

          7  Street School.

          8                 In addition concerning the hospital

          9  needs, I would like the hospital to strongly

         10  consider a more diverse pediatric services because

         11  we do not have it.  We have more and more children

         12  without the hospital, although they have made many

         13  improvements, have not considered the pediatric

         14  needs.

         15                 And for the record, my son has been

         16  diagnosed with asthma after 9/11.

         17                 Thank you, thank you for the

         18  opportunity.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you very

         20  much, and Ms. James, good to see you again.

         21                 MS. JAMES:  You too, Sir.  Good

         22  morning.

         23                 Thank you very much for this

         24  opportunity.  My name is Marianna James.  I am a

         25  resident of South Bridge Towers.  I am a public
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          2  member of Community Board 1, Youth and Education

          3  Committee, and I am one of two co- vice presidents

          4  of the Executive Board at P.S. 234.

          5                 I am also here, and my primary

          6  capacity today as the mother of three children

          7  growing up in this area.

          8                 I moved to this area, or my parents

          9  moved me to this are rather, when I was three months

         10  old.  So, I have seen definitely what Ann Marie was

         11  describing, and I remember people saying,`You live

         12  where?  No one lives there.'  And we were able to

         13  make due with what was available then because, I

         14  guess, in the scope of things, no one did live there

         15  but very people, but now that has changed so

         16  tremendously, and we need, we really need help in

         17  the area.  The pediatric situation that Ann Marie

         18  mentioned at the hospital, it is a sad state of

         19  affairs.            Personally, I had my daughter at

         20  New York Downtown Hospital two weeks ago, and Palm

         21  Sunday we were walking to church and she starts

         22  complaining of leg and back pain.  By the following

         23  Monday evening, upon my return home from work, she

         24  had a fever of 105 degrees.  We went to the

         25  hospital, the closest hospital to us, New York
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          2  Downtown Hospital, located right across the street

          3  from my building, and were not helped when we first

          4  reached there.  There was no triage nurse in the

          5  booth, I had to seek one, find one after a janitor

          6  realized I had been sitting there for so long.  He

          7  said,`you have not been helped yet?  You should go

          8  do something.'  I agreed with him, and I found my

          9  own triage nurse.  When the nurse realized the

         10  situation we were in, she did immediately begin to

         11  treat my daughter, and try to bring down her fever

         12  but then, we ended up in another area where we had

         13  to sit, yet again, for someone else.  When that

         14  someone else arrived, they did not tests, they did

         15  not cultures, they just began to treat my daughter

         16  with more Motrin, more Tylenol, and Amoxicillin.

         17  Giving her the Amoxicillin, without having tested

         18  her, prevented us from subsequently being able to

         19  find out what was actually wrong with her.  She was

         20  diagnosed with a throat infection, but she was

         21  complaining of pain in her legs and back. So, I do

         22  not understand what that could possibly have to do

         23  with a throat infection, and the hospital was made

         24  aware of that.

         25                 Now, I am not completely against the
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          2  hospital, my daughter, that same daughter was

          3  actually born in that hospital. So was my other

          4  daughter, and that other daughter was born in

          5  October of 2001.  So, I was obviously just about

          6  nine months pregnant on September 11th, and we went-

          7  we remained in our house without lights, without

          8  water because I was almost nine months pregnant, and

          9  I needed the doctor that was across the street and

         10  also did not have a phone or anyway to reach me.  As

         11  a result of that, my labor was induced purposely,

         12  scheduled and induced, so that I would not have an

         13  emergency, and not be able to reach the doctor.  My

         14  daughter started taking Zyrtec when she was about

         15  one, as I am thinking, as a result of that.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It is for

         17  allergies.

         18                 MS. JAMES:  Zyrtec is for extreme

         19  allergies, asthma.  I had to put her on a nebulizer

         20  last month, she got some sort of respiratory

         21  infection, breathing infection.  I would have to

         22  think that that is as a result of 9/11, so that is

         23  obviously disturbing to me.

         24                 Getting back to our needs in the

         25  area.  There is an immediate need for schools, I
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          2  mean, I am thankful that in 2007 or 2008 we are

          3  going to have something but there really is an

          4  immediate need for school services, and I do not

          5  know if anything can be done about that.  Loosing,

          6  what we are talking about now at 234, a science room

          7  is absolutely atrocious.  I mean, loosing an art

          8  room is disturbing, children need a creative outlet.

          9  Loosing a computer room but still having computers

         10  that travel on wagons, is an accommodation so, I

         11  cannot really complain about that but loosing a

         12  science room, science is such a major, major

         13  subject, and we do not have that many children even

         14  growing up being interested in science other than

         15  computer science, and it is very important, I think,

         16  that we continue to raise people that are going to

         17  be interested in biology and chemistry, and we just

         18  cannot loose the science room.  I find it really,

         19  really disturbing.

         20                 I also wanted to mention that when we

         21  do make these new schools, I would hope that in

         22  planning they could put in the accommodations for

         23  disabled children and teachers when they are

         24  building it.  That we do not have to go later on and

         25  ask for special ed services for elevators, for
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          2  ramps, like we are having to do now.  Both schools

          3  in the area are lacking in some special ed services,

          4  and two of my children are special needs children.

          5  One of which is at I.S. 89 right now, which is a

          6  good school, however, they do not do very well in

          7  the area of special ed, and when people mention that

          8  they say,`well, they do not have enough services, or

          9  they only have one teacher.'  That is a shame then.

         10  Why is that?  It is a good school, and it could

         11  continue to be a good school for everyone, for the

         12  general ed children, and the special ed children if

         13  it had what it needed. Two-thirty-four is also

         14  lacking with some special ed accommodations, and

         15  myself and a couple of other parents, about a year

         16  ago composed a proposal that we presented to the

         17  principle, and some other city officials, that

         18  listed all the accommodations that we could have,

         19  and thankfully, our principle did institute a number

         20  of those accommodations that we suggested. But there

         21  are still things that are missing, still things that

         22  could be helping, again, both the special ed and the

         23  general ed children if we had them in place, and I

         24  would think that if a new building is going to be

         25  built up, that should go in first and foremost.  It
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          2  should be there right away.  When the door opens,

          3  those things should be in place already.

          4                 Lastly in terms of the Homeland

          5  Security issue we have been discussing, I would like

          6  to mention the cell phone ban that started on the

          7  26th of this month.  I think that it is a total

          8  outrage for children to not have access to their

          9  cell phones.  Somebody tried to explain to me that

         10  it is as a result of being respondent to the copy

         11  cat Columbine things that were being discussed, the

         12  children planning to pull some kind of copy cat

         13  version of the Columbine situation.  My recollection

         14  of the Columbine situation is that those children

         15  had their cell phones, and called the police and

         16  their parents from underneath tables. That is my

         17  recollection.  So, taking the phone away from the

         18  children makes- because of terrorism or a threat

         19  that you feel, makes absolutely no sense to me.  I

         20  am working in Queens, my three children are all over

         21  Manhattan in school, my baby is uptown on 138th

         22  Street, my sons' at 89, my daughter is at 234, they

         23  are all graduating this year.  I do not know where

         24  they are going to be next year, but I am sure that

         25  they are not going to be in Queens with me, and I
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          2  need to be able to hear from them in the event of an

          3  emergency or contact them if I need to.

          4                 I think that was my last subject. I

          5  thank you for your time and this opportunity.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you all

          7  very much.               Since you raised the issue

          8  of cell phones, which is quite current, let me just

          9  mention briefly that this afternoon, shortly after

         10  we conclude this hearing, my office will be hand-

         11  delivering a letter to the Chancellor demanding that

         12  he rescind his cell phone ban regulation.

         13                 I think it is understandable if a

         14  school insists that children turn off their cell

         15  phone while they are on school premises, but the

         16  school and the school system must respect the

         17  parental decision as to the need for children to

         18  have cell phones during the periods before and after

         19  the school day, when they are off school premises.

         20  I think this is unacceptable, overreaching and user

         21  patient of parental authority by the Chancellor, and

         22  I hope he will rescind that.

         23                 MS. JAMES:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  But to the

         25  issues at hand, Mr. James, let me just start with
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          2  you, and by the way, because we do want to get

          3  through all the panels on time, I am going limit my

          4  questioning but we will certainly have the

          5  opportunity to follow up as necessary.

          6                 But just, you mentioned you have a

          7  child, is it P.S. Or I.S. 89?

          8                 MS. JAMES:  I.S. 89.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  So could you

         10  just briefly, we heard reports of overcrowding in

         11  P.S. 234, what is the state of crowding at I.S. 89,

         12  and if you know, P.S. 89?

         13                 MS. JAMES:  I.S. 89, I do not think

         14  that they have reached their capacity as of yet.  It

         15  is still a generally small school, and it is open to

         16  all of District 2, so with that in consideration,

         17  being that it is not a zoned school, that may be how

         18  they are able to keep the number down.  I mean, I

         19  think that 234 ended up being overcrowded because it

         20  is a zoned school for about five different

         21  neighborhoods.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Is there any, I

         23  am asking for the record, is there any zoned school

         24  in Lower Manhattan? Intermediate school or middle

         25  school?
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          2                 MS. JAMES:  Not to my knowledge, no.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Not to my

          4  knowledge either.

          5                 What about P.S. 89, do you have a

          6  sense of where they stand with crowding?

          7                 MS. JAMES:  I do not really.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, Mr.

          9  Doherty or Mr. Weinstein, the P.S. 234 Annex, the

         10  Beekman Street School, when they are brought on-

         11  line, let me ask you for the record.

         12                 In your opinion, will that solve the

         13  issue of crowding in these schools?

         14                 Mr. WEINSTEIN:  Absolutely not, in my

         15  opinion--.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Could you

         17  address that--.

         18                 MR. WEINSTEIN:  In my opinion, those

         19  schools will be full the day they open.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Bring the mic a

         21  little closer, we are making a recording of all of

         22  this.

         23                 MR. WEINSTEIN:  Okay, as far as I can

         24  ascertain, those schools will be filled the day they

         25  open.  The Beekman School, we are talking about I
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          2  think approximately 60 students per grade.

          3                 The Annex is going to have five

          4  classes, room for five classrooms, I think possibly

          5  six.  If you go into Washington Market Park on any

          6  nice afternoon, the number of toddlers and infants

          7  is mindboggling.  If the City would just send

          8  someone around to take a look, it is very easy to

          9  see--.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  That is an idea.

         11                 MR. WEINSTEIN: -- that there are

         12  hundreds and hundreds, if not, thousands of children

         13  who are going to be looking for a seat in a

         14  classroom within the next three or four years.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And the day

         16  these school facilities are expected to open when

         17  you said, and I am quite sure quite accurately, that

         18  they would be filled to capacity, that is well

         19  before most of the anticipated additional

         20  residential units currently projected for Lower

         21  Manhattan.

         22                 MR. WEINSTEIN:  Oh, absolutely, and

         23  it does not include the Deutsche Bank Building

         24  construction, and Greenwich South, it does not

         25  include any of those.
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          2                 There are buildings all around us.

          3  There is a building on Church Street, between Warren

          4  and Murray, that must have a couple of hundred units

          5  that looks like it is about ready to open, a

          6  condominium building.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Let me just ask

          8  you about Pre- K.  We lost our Pre- K at 234, where

          9  is the next closest Pre Kindergarten serving the

         10  community, do you know?  Either of you?

         11                 MR. WEINSTEIN:  I do not know the

         12  answer to that.

         13                 MR. DOHERTY:  I do not know where the

         14  next closest Pre- K is, and to the question earlier,

         15  the closest zoned middle school is Baruch, which is

         16  up, I think, at 21st and 1st.  So that is the

         17  closest, which to echo Julie Menin's comments, the

         18  development of another middle school Downtown,

         19  particularly on Greenwich Street South, would be a

         20  tremendous benefit because there is a tremendous

         21  amount of middle schoolers that live Downtown and

         22  people who want to come Downtown.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Is there a Pre-

         24  K at 89?

         25                 MS. DE FALCO:  I would like to
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          2  address the Pre- K issue.  There is a Pre- K at 89

          3  but it does not service all the zoned children of

          4  Downtown Manhattan.  If you live on the East Side,

          5  there is no zoned Pre- K, and we legally need to

          6  have one.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  If you live on

          8  the East Side you are not entitled to send your

          9  child a Pre- K--.

         10                 MS. DE FALCO:  We do not have a Pre-

         11  K. To 89, absolutely not, no.

         12                 MS. JAMES:  Eight- nine is only for

         13  Battery Park City.

         14                 MS. DE FALCO:  This is the problem,

         15  Marianna James has three children in elementary

         16  school between Pre- K and 8, but yet, she has to be

         17  in three schools because we do not have the

         18  education to support elementary school, Pre- K

         19  through 8.  It is absurd that she is in three

         20  different schools because we are not zoned for one.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And let me just,

         22  why don't you just stay by the mic for one second,

         23  and let me switch over to the hospital health issue

         24  that both you and Ms. James raised, and you both

         25  testified as to pediatric needs, and if I heard you
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          2  specifically, pediatric needs relating to pulmonary

          3  issues in addition to other issues.

          4                 Let me ask you, you heard some

          5  testimony earlier, we may have heard about the need

          6  for a more specialized expertise facility on

          7  pulmonary issues in Lower Manhattan.

          8                 From your experience, would that help

          9  you and help, from your knowledge, the extended

         10  community?

         11                 MS. DE FALCO:  I believe it will

         12  help, but you are forgetting about the children.

         13  The help for the adults is wonderful, but--.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  No, I am

         15  actually talking about a pulmonary facility--.

         16                 MS. DE FALCO:  For children.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Yes.

         18                 MS. DE FALCO:  Absolutely, not just

         19  for adults, but to include a pediatric unit.

         20  Cornell has a fabulous pediatric unit, and I am not

         21  saying we should have an exact system but something

         22  similar that could even take children into a

         23  separate area and treat them separately with

         24  pediatric care, absolutely.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Ms. James, do
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          2  you want to comment on that?

          3                 MS. JAMES:  I agree with that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay.

          5                 MS. JAMES:  One other problem that I

          6  thought at New York Downtown was that it seemed that

          7  a lot of people were using as a doctors office.

          8                 The night that I was there, it was

          9  just full of people that did not appear, at least,

         10  to be in an emergency situation.  My daughter ended

         11  up on a bed in the hallway, and then I could hear

         12  people debating about who was going to get admitted

         13  to the hospital, and who was not because they just

         14  apparently did not have any more room, and I think

         15  that that is why she was treated so poorly that

         16  night, just to rush us- good, we got the fever down,

         17  we can get this one out of here.

         18                 If they had had a pediatric unit, I

         19  would assume that would have helped.  I would like

         20  to think that would have helped, at least, and I was

         21  told by my pediatrician--.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Do either of the

         23  schools, 89 or 234, have health clinics within the

         24  school buildings, or--?

         25                 MS. JAMES:  They have nurses.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  You have nurses,

          3  but some schools have actual health--.

          4                 MS. JAMES:  No, they do not.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay.

          6                 MS. JAMES:  And they tend to bring

          7  children to St. Vincent's if something goes wrong.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Are the nurses

          9  full- time in both schools?  Do you know?

         10                 MS. JAMES:  As far as I know, yes.

         11                 MS. WEINSTEIN:  I think 234 has a

         12  full- time nurse.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, all right

         14  let me- we will follow- I just need to note, I think

         15  it is absolutely outrageous that we are talking

         16  about re- building and expanding the residential

         17  base of our community, at the same time as we are

         18  hearing testimony of the elimination of important

         19  learning centers, the elimination of Pre- K, the

         20  elimination of a computer room, the elimination of

         21  an art room, and the elimination of science, of a

         22  science room, and yes, you are right, this at a time

         23  when every expert is saying how poorly our Nation is

         24  lagging with respect to science education.  That is

         25  absolutely unacceptable, and I can assure you that
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          2  this committee will make sure that that point is

          3  heard loud and clear by everyone who needs to hear

          4  it.

          5                 I thank you, and I think the idea's

          6  we have heard of locations for high schools are, as

          7  well as middle schools, Greenwich Street South and

          8  Governors' Island, as I said earlier, on Governors'

          9  Island we can take advantage of a unique physical

         10  situation, and I cannot think of a better use for

         11  the Island than training or preparing our young

         12  people for the future.

         13                 I thank you, I thank you very much,

         14  each of you.

         15                 MS. DE FALCO:  Thank you.

         16                 MS. JAMES:  Thank you too, you are a

         17  please to be a constituent of.  You really are, you

         18  do what you say you are going to do I find.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Well, thank you,

         20  we certainly try.  Thank you very much.

         21                 We have three more panels.  The next

         22  panel will consist of Len Walsh and Don Faeth.

         23  Following that we will hear from Gei Fong and Betty

         24  Yu, and following that panel we will hear from

         25  Richard Barr, Stephen Koss, and if I am reading it
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          2  correctly, Leonie Haimson.

          3                 So, I thank everyone for your

          4  patience. If there is anyone else whose name I have

          5  not called, who is here to testify, please alert the

          6  Sergeant, and we will certainly get you on.

          7                 Good afternoon, and it is a pleasure

          8  to have both of you gentlemen here.  Mr. Walsh if

          9  you would state your name and affiliation for the

         10  record, we will begin.

         11                 MR. WALSH:  Okay, Len Walsh,

         12  Executive Director of St. Vincent's Hospital,

         13  Manhattan.

         14                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and

         15  members of the committee.

         16                 I am Len Walsh, Executive Director of

         17  St. Vincent's Hospital Manhattan.  I thank you for

         18  inviting me here today to speak with you regarding

         19  the health care needs of Lower Manhattan.

         20                 I am very pleased that you have

         21  chosen to focus on health care services in Lower

         22  Manhattan, as this is an area that I believe has not

         23  received adequate attention.

         24                 Deservedly, many resources have been

         25  dedicated to the redevelopment of businesses and
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          2  commercial real estate in this area.

          3                 However, we are doing a disservice to

          4  the people who work or visit Lower Manhattan, and

          5  most particularly the residents of this area, if do

          6  not also consider the health care services that are

          7  necessary to meet their needs.

          8                 Therefore, I want to focus my remarks

          9  on two important issues regarding health care

         10  services in Lower Manhattan, in which St. Vincent's

         11  is actively involved, health care services for the

         12  residents of Chinatown and emergency preparedness.

         13                 St. Vincent's is proud to have been

         14  an early provider of health care services to the

         15  Chinatown community. This year the St. Vincent's

         16  Chinatown Clinic will celebrate 30 years of

         17  providing primary and specialty services to the

         18  community.  Our Community Medicine Department has

         19  been serving the homebound elderly in Chinatown for

         20  nearly 20 years.

         21                 The St. Vincent's Chinatown Clinic on

         22  Elizabeth Street faces an unprecedented demand for

         23  services from an uninsured population, and as a

         24  result will soon be unable to accommodate the

         25  current and future needs of its patients in its
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          2  existing location.

          3                 St. Vincent's has submitted a grant

          4  request to the Lower Manhattan Development

          5  Corporation to build a Chinatown Clinic for the

          6  future with the capacity to provide culturally

          7  competent health care services for the current

          8  residents of Chinatown, as well as for those

          9  immigrants expected to arrive in the future.  An

         10  expanded facility will allow St. Vincent's Chinatown

         11  Clinic to, both, increase existing services and

         12  offer additional services to meet the communities

         13  diverse health care needs.

         14                 The envisioned clinic would serve an

         15  essential neighborhood resource that offers

         16  accessible high quality and culturally competent

         17  care, while supporting the rebuilding of Lower

         18  Manhattan, and contributing to the vision of

         19  Chinatown as a thriving financial, manufacturing,

         20  residential, and cultural hub. St. Vincent's

         21  Chinatown Clinic is requesting a grant of $8.1

         22  million to fund this project.  St. Vincent's

         23  currently supports an annual operating budget for

         24  the Clinic in the amount of $2.8 million.

         25                 In addition to our clinic, St.
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          2  Vincent's Hospital is a major provider of health

          3  care- St. Vincent's itself is a major provider of

          4  health care to residents of Chinatown.  We recently

          5  opened a new Chinese In- Patient Unit created to

          6  help our Chinese patients and their families feel as

          7  comfortable and as secure as possible during their

          8  stay with us.  We offer language interpretation

          9  services, 24 hours, seven days a week, and we employ

         10  many Chinese and bilingual volunteers and staff.

         11  St. Vincent's employs some 240 Chinese staff, and

         12  has 23 Chinese medical residents in its various

         13  residency training programs. Approximately 178

         14  Chinese physicians, both employed and voluntary, are

         15  affiliated with the hospital.  They serve in many

         16  disciplines, including cardiology, emergency

         17  medicine, endocrinology, family practice, obstetrics

         18  and gynecology, oncology, and pulmonary diseases, to

         19  name a few.

         20                 In terms of emergency preparedness,

         21  St. Vincent's Hospital Manhattan is one of only two

         22  acute care hospitals located below 14th Street in

         23  Manhattan.

         24                 On September 11, 2001, we were called

         25  upon to respond to one of the worst attacks to take
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          2  place on American soil.  As the only hospital with a

          3  Level 1 Trauma Center below 14th Street and on the

          4  West Side, St. Vincent's Hospital Manhattan received

          5  the first victims from the World Trade Center. More

          6  than 800 survivors passed through our emergency room

          7  on that day, the largest number seen at any

          8  emergency room in New York City.

          9                 Realizing that there were many more

         10  family members than victims in our hospital, we

         11  quickly set up a Family Service Center that helped

         12  more than 6,800 families looking for loved one,

         13  providing crisis counseling, referrals, and a sense

         14  of comfort.  A month later, St. Vincent's also

         15  served as an expert source of information and care

         16  when members of the community came to us during the

         17  anthrax scares in New York City.

         18                 With the threat of future biological,

         19  chemical, and nuclear attack everpresent, it is a

         20  matter of city and even national importance that

         21  hospitals in New York City have the capacity to

         22  respond instantly to large- scale disasters.

         23                 Given St. Vincent's proximity to the

         24  financial district, as well as many of the city's

         25  most highly vulnerable structures, we feel a serious
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          2  responsibility to invest in emergency preparedness

          3  to meet the health care needs of New Yorkers if, and

          4  some say, when, such an attack occurs.

          5                 Therefore, St. Vincent's is

          6  undertaking a comprehensive renovation and expansion

          7  of its Trauma Center, at an estimated cost of $23

          8  million, too be called the Rudolph Giuliani Trauma

          9  Center.  It will include a Bio- Terrorism Rapid

         10  Response Initiative with capital improvements and

         11  resources needed to ensure swift disaster response.

         12                 Under this renovation, the emergency

         13  department will expand by an additional 10.000

         14  square feet.  A new operating theater will hold two

         15  fully equipped bays for immediate life saving

         16  interventions and special units for pediatrics,

         17  psychiatry, radiology and other medical disciplines.

         18

         19                 It will house new decontamination

         20  facilities with the ability to precess 200

         21  individuals an hour in the event of an NBC attack,

         22  who care then enter the emergency department without

         23  contaminating other patients and our workers.

         24                 To date, St. Vincent's has raised $10

         25  million for visionary corporations and foundations
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          2  which allowed us to complete Phase 1 of the

          3  renovation, a new 10- bed Fast Track Center adjacent

          4  to the emergency room for patients who have less

          5  traumatic injuries and illnesses.  The new Fast Trac

          6  opened in March.  In the event of a natural or man-

          7  made disaster, it gives St. Vincent's additional

          8  surge capacity space to treat the victims who would

          9  come to the hospital for care.

         10                 The Fast Track Center is currently

         11  equipped with state- of- the- art diagnostic

         12  equipment, such as bedside electronic medical record

         13  and bedside Picture Archiving and Communications

         14  Systems for electronic viewing of radiological

         15  images to meet the everyday urgent and emergency

         16  need of New Yorkers.

         17                 St. Vincent's has become recognized

         18  in New York and across the country for its emergency

         19  services.  St. Vincent's Catholic Medical Centers is

         20  the largest private provider of EMS services in the

         21  New York City Fire Department's 911 service.  It

         22  participates in several citywide and statewide

         23  activities relating to disaster preparedness,

         24  including New York City Office of Emergency

         25  Management drills.  Several of our staff members sit
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          2  on citywide, state, and federal committees focused

          3  on emergency preparedness.

          4                 As I mentioned earlier, we are

          5  undertaking these initiative to address what we view

          6  as a pressing need.   We have received little

          7  government reimbursement for our emergency

          8  preparedness activities, and have relied solely on

          9  the generosity of private donors to renovate our

         10  Trauma Center.  Of note, there is no added level of

         11  reimbursement for services provided in trauma

         12  centers.  At. St. Vincent's Level 1 Trauma Center,

         13  we are required to have all major specialties

         14  available at the hospital around the clock, 365 days

         15  a year, to respond to any trauma that come to our

         16  hospital.  This adds to our overall cost for

         17  emergency services.

         18                 As the city council considers its

         19  priority for Lower Manhattan in the coming years, I

         20  hope that you will consider funding for emergency

         21  preparedness and the provision of health care

         22  services to the Chinatown population, and all the

         23  residents of Lower Manhattan.  These are two

         24  important priorities that deserve your attention, as

         25  well as the attention of health care providers.
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          2                 Further, St. Vincent's Hospital

          3  Manhattan would be extremely grateful for any

          4  support that the city council can provide for the

          5  initiatives it is undertaking in these areas.

          6                 Thank you for allowing me to discuss

          7  these topics with you today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you very

          9  much, and let me just take this opportunity to thank

         10  you for your leadership at St. Vincent's, which

         11  benefits all of our community.

         12                 If you will just remain a few more

         13  moments.

         14                 At this time, Mr. Faeth, welcome.  It

         15  is always good to see you, thank you for all you do

         16  keeping us safe and sound.

         17                 MR. FAETH:  Same here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  The mic is

         19  yours.

         20                 MR. FAETH:  Thank you, Chairman

         21  Gerson.

         22                 My name is Donald Faeth, I am the

         23  Vice President of the Uniformed EMT's and Paramedics

         24  of the New York City Fire Department.  I am also a

         25  19 year veteran paramedic, and I also sit on the
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          2  State Emergency Medical Council Board up in Albany.

          3                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          4  present concerns regarding the need to improve

          5  resources to address the emergency responses to the

          6  rapidly growing population of Lower Manhattan.     I

          7  must commend the city council for being proactive on

          8  this very important issue since failure to provide

          9  the proper resources in an emergency can have very

         10  grave, irreversible consequences to those needing

         11  them.

         12                 For the purposes of this discussion,

         13  I will utilize Canal Street as the demarcation of

         14  Lower Manhattan. Emergency medical resources for

         15  this area is supplied by the New York City Fire

         16  Department, New York Downtown Hospital, St.

         17  Vincent's and Beth Israel Hospital.  Combined

         18  resources produces four advanced life support units

         19  and seven basic life support units.  Two of the

         20  seven BLS units are hazardous material certified.

         21  The average overall response times to Manhattan

         22  residents and visitors for life threatening priority

         23  segments one through three calls averages between

         24  six minutes and nineteen seconds to six minutes and

         25  forty- two seconds for this current year.  One
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          2  through three calls is cardiac arrest, non-

          3  breather, chocking, chest pain.  A very impressive

          4  effort since the New York City Fire Department only

          5  funds EMS for a seven minute response time.  I want

          6  you to note however, that all medical literature to

          7  date, validates that irreversible death occurs in an

          8  individual whose heart has stopped beating within

          9  five- and- a half minutes to six minutes.  The

         10  exception being applied only in hypothermic

         11  situations.  So we are not really even achieving the

         12  goal that we should be setting out to do.

         13                 In order to calculate a close

         14  estimation of EMS resources needed to safely address

         15  the needs of Lower Manhattan residents with its

         16  growing population, we first need to accurately

         17  record these response times.  Since the Fire

         18  Department currently tracks EMS response from the

         19  time the unit receives the call to the time that

         20  unit arrives in front of the building, current

         21  published times are seriously flawed.  The fact that

         22  we live in a vertical city, the actual time it takes

         23  to receive assistance is much greater than what I

         24  have just stated. The crews need to retrieve their

         25  equipment, they need go gain access to the building,
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          2  they will either be taking the elevator or taking

          3  the stairs up, and then they need to gain access to

          4  the apartment.  All this adds several critical

          5  minutes to the time that care givers are actually

          6  reaching the person that they need to assist.

          7                 The system, in turn, since we do not

          8  adequately and respectfully, truthfully, record

          9  these times, the system does not receive the

         10  resources that they need to accomplish this task,

         11  and unfortunately, it is the patient who is going to

         12  suffer.

         13                 New York City Emergency Medical

         14  Services respond to approximately 1.4 million calls

         15  per year.  On average, we respond to over 3,000

         16  calls a day.

         17                 I want you to keep in mind, that one

         18  call may produce significantly more than one patient

         19  as seen on a daily basis with motor vehicle

         20  accidents and catastrophic situations like 9/11.

         21  9/11 was given one job number.  That is part of that

         22  3,500 calls a day.

         23                 Again, I must commend the city

         24  council for addressing this issue.  I wish I could

         25  honestly suggest a specific number of additional EMS
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          2  resources that are needed to safely take care of the

          3  citizens, but until we accurately reflect what we

          4  are doing today, there is not way, we cannot

          5  accurately address what we need tomorrow.

          6                 My office is committed to assisting

          7  you with this endeavor with any available resources

          8  we have at our disposal.

          9                 Thank you again for your time and

         10  attention to this matter.

         11                 I would be very happy to answer any

         12  questions you may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Yes, thank you,

         14  thank you very much.  Again, I will try and be brief

         15  with my questioning so we can get through to

         16  everyone on time, but let me just ask you Mr. Walsh

         17  first, can you tell us approximately how much

         18  funding St. Vincent's has received for preparedness

         19  facilities and planning from the federal government?

         20                 MR. WALSH:  I cannot give you an

         21  exact amount, but I would say it is under $200,000.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Under $200,000?

         23                 MR. WALSH:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Just out of

         25  curiosity, what can $200,000 buy in the year--.
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          2                 MR. WALSH:  And it comes in very

          3  small grants of $35,000 for some more radios, or

          4  $75,000 for this piece of equipment.  There is no

          5  organized approach to getting the hospitals in New

          6  York City more prepared from the federal government,

          7  or from the state government, or from the city

          8  government.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And that

         10  includes the hospitals which serve Lower Manhattan?

         11                 MR. WALSH:  That is correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Have you as yet

         13  received any funding from the Lower Manhattan

         14  Development Corporation?

         15                 MR. WALSH:  No, we have not.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay.  The

         17  remaining $10 million for your trauma center, just

         18  give us a brief overview of what that would go for.

         19                 MR. WALSH:  It is actually remaining

         20  around $13 million.  The project was about $23

         21  million, which has probably gone up by now, each

         22  year that we do not get it completed it will go up,

         23  but using the old $23 million we have had to raise

         24  $10, we spent about $8 million of that on the first

         25  phase of the urgent care center.  The $2 million is
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          2  on planning, monies now to design the second half,

          3  which again, will be increased capacity.  Our

          4  emergency room was originally designed to see

          5  approximately 35,000 patient visits a year.  We are

          6  now seeing in excess of 50,000 visits a year.

          7                 So, we are already undersized for the

          8  population, not even talking about the growth in the

          9  neighborhood; the growth on the West Side of

         10  Manhattan, the rail yard projects, as well as all

         11  Lower Manhattan.  St. Vincent's really has got to be

         12  prepared to deal with a lot more patients.

         13                 So the new components of the project

         14  will include increased capacity, increased space,

         15  increased technology, more efficient use of space.

         16  Emergency rooms were designed very inefficiently in

         17  the past because of manual medical records and bulky

         18  equipment, so we can be much more efficient in the

         19  new phase.  And also a major component is the bio-

         20  terrorism and emergency preparedness response.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Turning now to

         22  the St. Vincent's Chinatown Clinic, which I by the

         23  way know does a superb job, the $8.1 million grant

         24  that you are requesting, what would that go for?

         25                 MR. WALSH:  That would go for a brand
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          2  new site, approximately twice the size of the site

          3  that we have now.  We have about a 25,000 square

          4  foot, I believe, site with a full array of multi-

          5  specialized- and that would be really that capital

          6  cost.  We would cover the operating costs associated

          7  with the expansion.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, and then

          9  let me just ask you, do you feel the community,

         10  including the community of health care providers

         11  could benefit from some sort of a more scientific

         12  study which would try and analyze trends, projected

         13  demands, preparedness needs, and relate that to the

         14  need for governmental support to existing, and

         15  perhaps, expanded health care facilities?

         16                 Do you think we need some kind of

         17  approach like that?

         18                 MS. WALSH:  Absolutely, I think the

         19  health care providers in Lower Manhattan need to be

         20  working together in terms of meeting the needs.

         21                 So, I think to identify the needs,

         22  and then decide who would best bring what to the

         23  table would make perfect sense. That is not what New

         24  York has been known for in relation to health care,

         25  and I think if we are really going to be
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          2  successful- we cannot afford the duplication of

          3  resources.  We cannot afford competitive nature of

          4  resources, there is enough for everybody- there is

          5  enough need for everybody to meet it, and to be

          6  successful.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  There sure is.

          8                 MR. WALSH:  And I think if- as health

          9  care leaders, we really owe the City that, and we

         10  have an obligation to really work together, and to

         11  define the needs first, to really look at the

         12  projection, decide what is going on, and then to

         13  work together in meeting those needs would be the

         14  best to the service of the City.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Well Mr. Walsh,

         16  I thank you very much again, and I could assure you

         17  we will be following up.

         18                 Mr. Faeth, should such a study

         19  include and analysis with an accurate accounting of

         20  the current situation to determine how much we need

         21  in EMS resources?

         22                 MR. FAETH:  Most definitely.  Just a

         23  little north of here, Boston, does track--.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Just raise the

         25  mic a little bit, we do not want to miss one word.
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          2                 MR. FAETH:  Sorry, a little bit north

          3  of here, Boston, does track their vertical response

          4  time, and they take that into consideration and how

          5  they actually allocate their resources, and what

          6  they will need.

          7                 I can tell you that they are now

          8  proudly touting

          9  a 40 percent cardiac arrest survivability in their

         10  pre- hospital care arena where this system right now

         11  is claiming about an eight percent cardiac arrest

         12  survivability.  That is sad, and it is

         13  unconscionable.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  To what do you

         15  attribute the difference?

         16                 MR. FAETH:  Very simply, Boston EMS

         17  actually puts a focus on their pre- hospital care.

         18  They put the resources, the money, and the actual

         19  consideration in when they make decisions how best

         20  to respond to those people in need.  Right now, EMS

         21  is pretty much an afterthought.  The running joke in

         22  emergency services is that EMS gets the crumbs,

         23  after police and fire.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  It seems we are

         25  hearing a lot of testimony at this hearing about a
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          2  lot of afterthoughts that should be pre- thoughts.

          3                 MR. FAETH:  Most definitely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  But let me ask

          5  you, as you know, I have introduced legislation that

          6  would require the city, the Fire Department to track

          7  accurate response times to time of arrival at the

          8  victim.

          9                 Is it time in your opinion to pass

         10  that legislation?

         11                 MR. FAETH:  The time is like

         12  yesterday, to be frank.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And we

         14  appreciate your frankness.

         15                 With respect to the difference

         16  between ALS and BLS units, would it be, excuse me

         17  one second Mr. Faeth, we have been joined by one of

         18  the illustrious members of this committee and this

         19  council, Council Member Helen Foster.

         20                 I mentioned earlier council member

         21  that we are all at this time of year jumping back

         22  and forth between different meetings.  Council

         23  Member Foster has been with us from the very

         24  beginning, and has been a terrific leader of this

         25  council, as well as an advocate of the needs of
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          2  rebuilding.  We thank you.

          3                 We are going to interrupt Mr. Faeth

          4  for just one moment to, as I will ask the counsel to

          5  take Council Member Foster's vote.  We voted earlier

          6  on the resolution calling on the EPA to- you know

          7  the resolution?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Right, yes I

          9  do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  We need to

         12  call Billy back upstairs, do we not?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Well, for the

         14  signature sheet, but for the record, what we did

         15  earlier is we had Counsel record the vote.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Okay, and

         17  then I can just run downstairs and do the signing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  That will fine,

         19  I can ask the Sergeant--.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  No, it is all

         21  right, it is just for me.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, Counsel?

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  On

         24  Resolution 187- A, how do you vote, Council Member

         25  Foster?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Thank you, I

          3  vote aye, and again, I apologize for being late.  I

          4  had a previous engagement booked in the Bronx that I

          5  could not reschedule.

          6                 So, thank you, sorry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  We are glad you

          8  are here.

          9                 Mr. Faeth, I was just about to ask

         10  you about the difference between BLS and ALS units

         11  basic and advanced life support units.

         12                 Would we benefit from funding the

         13  conversion of additional BLS to ALS units?  Is that

         14  something we should be considering?

         15                 MR. FAETH:  Yes, it is a wise move.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Could you just

         17  briefly describe what they key differences are

         18  between the two types of units?

         19                 MR. FAETH:  Basic Life Support

         20  provides basic treatments.  They provide oxygen,

         21  immobilization, hemorrhage control, they assist in

         22  deliveries.

         23                 ALS, or Advanced Life Support, has

         24  much greater training there.  They are capable of

         25  placing an intubation tube into the trachea to
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          2  actually breath for the person.  They use 12 Lead

          3  EKG's interpretation, they use defibrillation,

          4  cardio version, needle cricothyrotomy for an

          5  obstructed airway, needle chest decompression for a

          6  chest trauma, the list goes on and on. IV insertion,

          7  medication pharmacology, it is pretty much bringing

          8  the ER to the person, and for the most part, I am

          9  all for- you have to increase resources.  The state

         10  has to increase resources to the local hospitals,

         11  but the hospital cannot do anything if they are

         12  delivered a dead person.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  That is a very

         14  important point to keep in mind.

         15                 MR. FAETH:  So, both things need to

         16  be funded.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  I may quote you

         18  on that, if

         19  I may.

         20                 MR. FAETH:  And you may, you may.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Finally, let me

         22  just ask you, we had this discussion not too long

         23  ago, but I believe we lost at least one tour from

         24  the EMS service, which had previously served part of

         25  the Chinatown community.
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          2                 MR. FAETH:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Do you know, has

          4  that tour been replaced?

          5                 Do you believe there still is a need

          6  to replace that tour, and then I will combine it all

          7  at once as a final question.

          8                 With the ensuing construction period,

          9  intensity, and including the various street closures

         10  that we know will go with that, is there a need to

         11  plan for the possibility or is there a need to plan

         12  to bring on- line additional tours in this area for

         13  the intense construction period or then the

         14  thereafter?

         15                 That is, I think, a multi- part

         16  question, but I know you can handle it.

         17                 MR. FAETH:  To my knowledge, the unit

         18  in Chinatown that was removed has not been replaced.

         19    The plans or intentions of the Fire Department to

         20  increase resources, knowing that there is going to

         21  be intensive construction here, is not within my

         22  purview.  I do not know what their intentions are.

         23  I do know that--.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  But should we do

         25  this?

                                                            120

          1  LOWER MANHATTAN REDEVELOPMENT

          2                 Is this something that makes sense to

          3  you?

          4                 MR. FAETH:  Most definitely, most

          5  definitely, you are going to have increased traffic.

          6    You are going to have an enormous- each and every

          7  day you have visitors coming down that are now going

          8  to be curious, too, about what is happening with the

          9  site, and you are going to have increased motor

         10  vehicle accidents, crime, other things.

         11                 The resources are needed and like I

         12  stated before, we are not currently meeting what the

         13  medical community dictates is as an appropriate

         14  response time to what we are currently doing.

         15                 So yes most definitely, they really

         16  do need to increase these services.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And that is

         18  certainly something we should include in any study

         19  that is undertaken.

         20                 MR. FAETH:  We would appreciate it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, well I

         22  thank you both very much.

         23                 MR. FAETH:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  We will continue

         25  to be in touch, and thank you, and to work together.
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          2                 MR. FAETH:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  At this point I

          4  would like to call on Jei Fong, and Betty Yu if you

          5  are- please come forward and join us, welcome.

          6                 Is Ms. Fong here still?  All right,

          7  we will follow up with her.

          8                 Ms. Yu, the mic is yours, welcome, it

          9  is good to see you.

         10                 MS. YU:  It is good to see you.

         11                 I would like to first thank you,

         12  Council Member Gerson for your support to the

         13  Afterschool Programs, and thank you for lending your

         14  voice to our cause, and I am referring specifically

         15  to your presence and support at the P.S. 28 Parent

         16  Rally.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  That was a very

         18  hot day as I recall, but it was a very significant

         19  rally, so let us see where we stand.

         20                 Go ahead, I am sorry.

         21                 MS. YU:  Yes, and also I want to

         22  thank the other council members for the opportunity

         23  to allow me to testify as a witness to the Out of

         24  School Time, and its negative impact on the

         25  Afterschool Programs citywide.
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          2                 Today I am speaking from the

          3  perspective of a front- line staff, and my name is

          4  Betty.  I am currently working as a Group Leader at

          5  the Chrystie Street School Age day Care Center of

          6  the Chinese- American Planning Council for third and

          7  fourth graders, and I am simultaneously assuming the

          8  role of shop steward for the program.

          9                 So, today I represent and position

         10  myself with the children and families whom I have

         11  naturally become obligated to, and with the staff

         12  whom I have come to know, admire and believe in.

         13  Now, if I did not believe in this cause, I would not

         14  be one to be here to speak before public, but I am

         15  here today because I am concerned about the already

         16  underserved population of our city, and I want to

         17  bring light to the matter that has affected and

         18  brought mistrust to the communities in our borough.

         19                 This matter pertains to the Out of

         20  School times' affect on the overall well- being of

         21  our children.  Now as a result of the OST, the

         22  Chrystie Street Afterschool Program has made its

         23  full transition over to DYCD this past September,

         24  and having been with the Chrystie Street School Age

         25  Day Care Center for almost five years, I have
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          2  witnessed first hand the changes that our After

          3  School Center has undergone since the City's OST

          4  initiative to transfer all ACS funded school age

          5  programs under DYCD, or to close them down.  It has

          6  been rather disheartening.

          7                 When I first joined the Program five

          8  years ago, the Program under ACS was adequately

          9  funded to employ the most qualified of individuals

         10  to run the classrooms and the program.

         11                 When I joined in 2001, all of the

         12  Group Leaders either held a master's degree or were

         13  working towards completion of their master's degree,

         14  and four of five Assistant Group Leaders possessed

         15  at least a bachelor's degree.  Three of the five

         16  Group Leaders were public school teachers during the

         17  day. It is not only comforting to have dedicated and

         18  qualified individuals providing for our children, it

         19  is really necessary. It should not be compromised,

         20  and it cannot be compromised.  The conscientious

         21  ones of us cannot and would not compromise,

         22  foremost, the welfare and livelihood of our

         23  children.  One of our gravest fears is that soon

         24  there will come a day when our children will fall

         25  into the hands of inexperienced, untrained people,
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          2  incapable of caring for our children who are

          3  probably children themselves.  We fear that it will

          4  take that day to come when one or a series of

          5  tragedies would have taken place in one of our

          6  under- funded after school programs for us to

          7  realize the seriously miscalculated steps that were

          8  taken.

          9                 Thankfully, our center was able to

         10  retain qualified staff this year, in part due to

         11  some of the staff's strong dedication and attachment

         12  to the center.  But as shop steward, I am witnessing

         13  a serious decline in overall morale as a result of

         14  the loss of benefits, which included medical,

         15  supplemental medical, educational, and retirement

         16  benefits, and a pending wage decrease.  The employer

         17  simply cannot pay for the employees who are owed

         18  what they are owed under the collective bargaining

         19  agreement because adequate funding is not being

         20  provided under the DYCD Out of School Time

         21  initiative

         22                 It really feels like we have been

         23  taken for a ride.  The OST initiative structured it

         24  so that employees that had been working 20 hours per

         25  week, which is four hours per day, under ACS now
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          2  works 15 hours per week, which is three hours per

          3  day under DYCD.  That one hour per day taken away

          4  under DYCD was originally designated for preparation

          5  time by ACS.

          6                 The fact of the matter is that

          7  without a designated prep hour every day, the

          8  quality of the program will diminish, and DYCD asked

          9  for programs to structure enrichment activities,

         10  which we abide by because we know the importance of

         11  it, but where is the time for the thoughtful

         12  structuring of these meaningful activities?  DYCD

         13  does not provide us with the time necessary to plan

         14  and implement the ideals.

         15                 The reality of the situation is that

         16  at our Center the workers are working overtime for

         17  the purpose of planning and preparing in order to

         18  maintain quality, and we are working in the centers

         19  longer than contacted, but we are not paid for it.

         20  Not only are we not paid for it, we have been

         21  stripped of all the benefits because the record

         22  reflects that we are only working 15 hours a week,

         23  and this takes advantage of the most conscientious

         24  ones of us.

         25                 Under ACS, the program was adequately
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          2  funded to service approximately 100 elementary

          3  school children from local elementary schools.

          4  Today, we were awarded 66 slots.  Now our union and

          5  our city is promoting the use of vouchers and

          6  selling it as the cure- all.  The question is

          7  simple, with reductions in number of programs in

          8  addition to the reduction in the number of slots

          9  awarded to each program, will not children

         10  inevitably be left behind with or without the

         11  vouchers?

         12                 My time at this after school program

         13  has been indescribably rewarding.  One feels a

         14  genuine sense of belonging there, and the atmosphere

         15  is relaxed and the experiences provided are

         16  challenging and aimed at maximizing growth potential

         17  in our young socially, intellectually, physically.

         18  We continue to strive towards this goal of enabling

         19  our children to become well rounded, motivated,

         20  conscientious, competent and productive citizens.

         21  But, without support from the City, I fear that this

         22  may be a losing battle.  It is of the utmost

         23  importance that time is given to reevaluate OST, and

         24  to ensure sufficient funding is provided for quality

         25  programs.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Well thank you

          3  very much for that disheartening but compelling

          4  testimony.

          5                 MS. YU:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Let me just ask

          7  you, the 34 children whose slots were lost, what has

          8  happened to them?  Do you know?  Are they accepted

          9  elsewhere, or are they just turned away, have you

         10  managed to include them despite the loss of slots?

         11                 You said you went down from 100 to

         12  66, do you know what happened?

         13                 MS. YU:  Well, our particular center

         14  went down from about 100 children to 66 children.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Right.

         16                 MS. YU:   The other 44 children, I

         17  actually myself have seen two on the street, and I

         18  asked where they were going, and they said they were

         19  going home by themselves, and this is in the

         20  beginning of the school year.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  That is

         22  outrageous.

         23                 MS. YU:  Yes, I do know that some

         24  have found other after school programs around the

         25  city but it was very inconvenient, and it was a very
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          2  chaotic situation in September because parents did

          3  not know what to do with vouchers, they did not know

          4  where to look for vouchers, and it was a very

          5  disorganized system.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Do you know if

          7  the overall number of slots from all programs in the

          8  vicinity of yours has gone down, stayed the same, or

          9  have gone up?

         10                 MS. YU:  As far as I know, what the

         11  Chinese American Planning Council we originally had

         12  eight after school programs, and that has been

         13  reduced to six after school programs. Each after

         14  school programs had a reduction in the number of

         15  slots.

         16                 If this is happening citywide, I just

         17  do not know where there are enough slots to

         18  accommodate all the children, and with the growing

         19  population as everybody has been talking about, I am

         20  very concerned.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  You referred to

         22  the rally that we had a while ago at P.S. 28, one of

         23  the concerns expressed then was that in addition to

         24  the loss of slots with the reorganization of program

         25  locations, there would be some elementary schools
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          2  without after school programs to serve the demand

          3  from their school requiring elementary school- aged

          4  children to have to go to a different location,

          5  assuming they found slots.

          6                 Could you address that?  Has that

          7  concerned materialized?  Is that happening?  How is

          8  that being dealt with in terms of moving children

          9  from one location to another?

         10                 MS. YU:  As far as I know, children

         11  are being moved from one location to another.  I

         12  also realize that--.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  So there are

         14  some elementary schools which do not have programs

         15  to accommodate all the children from that school?

         16                 MS. YU:  Exactly, as far as I know.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  And do you know

         18  how they are being transported?  Who is doing that?

         19  Are they left to their own?

         20                 MS. YU:  I mean, the parents are, in

         21  the beginning of the school year they were coming to

         22  us as for answers, and I think they are pretty much

         23  left to their own.  They are just scrambling all

         24  over the place for answers.  It is not clear exactly

         25  where they can go.
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          2                 I think eventually parents were able

          3  to find other sources of care for the children, but

          4  it was not very organized.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Do you

          6  anticipate the demand to continue, if not increase,

          7  for after school?

          8                 MS. YU:  I would expect it to

          9  increase, especially with the Chinese immigrant

         10  population on the rise.  It would only increase

         11  especially in the area of, in and around Chinatown.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Well clearly we

         13  need them to do better, and I thank you very much

         14  for the outstanding job.  I know you and the

         15  Chinese- American Planning Council do, day in and

         16  day out, and I can assure you we will follow up to

         17  this compelling testimony.

         18                 MS. YU:  Thank you very much, Council

         19  Member Gerson.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you.

         21                 Okay, our final panel you all get the

         22  patience prize.

         23                 We appreciate your being here and

         24  waiting, and Richard Barr, Stephen Koss, Leonie

         25  Haimson, did I miss someone?
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          2                 Well, actually before anyone

          3  testifies you need to fill out a witness card with

          4  the speaker (sic), so if you have not done so,

          5  please do so now, and is there anyone who has done

          6  so whose name I have not called?

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  You did call

          8  me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Oh, I did call

         10  you.  I have yours.

         11                 I have Mr. Koss, Mr. Barr, and Ms.

         12  Haimson.

         13                 Who am I missing?

         14                 MS. HAIMSON:  Tamara Rowe is signing

         15  up now, and Beverly Marshak (phonetic) and Lisa

         16  Donlan will not be speaking but they wanted to sit

         17  with me.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Oh, okay well

         19  that is fine, they are welcome.

         20                 MS. HAIMSON:  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, and if you

         22  will state your name and affiliation for the record.

         23    Thank you.

         24                 MS. HAIMSON:  Okay, my name is Leonie

         25  Haimson.  I am the Executive Director of Class Size
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          2  Matters, and I wanted to thank you, Chairperson

          3  Gerson, and Council Member Foster for being here

          4  today.

          5                 When Michael Bloomberg first ran for

          6  Mayor in 2001, he said he would accelerate school

          7  construction to eliminate overcrowding and reduce

          8  class size.  He also pledged to place high schools

          9  on Governor's Island.  Here is his original campaign

         10  promise from October 17, 2001:

         11                  "We should build a major high school

         12  and university complex on Governor's Island in

         13  partnership with one or more of our great private

         14  universities.  The room is there for athletic

         15  facilities, labs, workshops, classrooms, et cetera.

         16  This would also free up many existing buildings in

         17  all boroughs for junior high school, elementary

         18  school and special education uses."

         19                 Yet neither action occurred.  Fewer

         20  new seats have been created every year in this

         21  administration, and here is a chart showing this

         22  from the Mayor's Management Report.  And the latest

         23   "accountability statement" from the Mayor's office,

         24  in which the status of his various campaign promises

         25  are described, says the following:
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          2                  "Initiative:  Build a major high

          3  school and university complex on Governor's Island

          4  in partnership with one of more private

          5  universities."

          6                 Update 2004, and by the way, that was

          7  not what his original promise was anyway because it

          8  was not private, it was going to be CUNY, but in any

          9  case, he changed it for- it was supposed to be for

         10  the record but he changed it.

         11                 Update 2004:  The City and State

         12  received control of Governor's Island, and are

         13  working on a plan to develop education facilities on

         14  the site.

         15                 Yet here we are in 2006, and nothing

         16  has happened on the Island in terms of schools or

         17  anything else.  Instead, Governor's Island

         18  Preservation and Education Corporation or GIPEC, has

         19  been told to maximize the Island's profit- making

         20  potential, and has issued a request for proposals to

         21  developers.

         22                 As a result of this inaction, 70

         23  percent of our New York City high school students

         24  still attend overcrowded schools, with most of them

         25  crammed into classes of 30 or more, and I just want
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          2  to show a chart also from the MMR showing the

          3  increase of classes with more than 34 students over

          4  the last four years.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Excuse me, do

          6  you have copies of those charts which you could

          7  submit for the record to the Sergeant?

          8                 MS. HAIMSON:  Yes, I will give you

          9  all these.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MS. HAIMSON:  Just last week, the

         13  Manhattan Institute released a report revealing that

         14  in New York City, our high school graduation rates

         15  were only 43 percent, ranking third lowest of the

         16  100 largest school districts in the nation, with

         17  graduation rates of only 39 percent among boys.

         18  This appallingly low figure is very close to recent

         19  estimates released by the State Education

         20  Department.

         21                 According to the latest Mayor's

         22  Management Report, our four year and seven year

         23  graduation rates are dropping, as is high school

         24  attendance.

         25                 The ongoing crisis in our high
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          2  schools has received insufficient attention from the

          3  media, and our elected officials.  And since this is

          4  about health care as well as schools, can you

          5  imagine if only 43 percent of patients entered our

          6  hospitals left alive because of overcrowding and

          7  substandard conditions.  I think in this city we

          8  would immediately call for an emergency commission.

          9  We would immediately take action and do whatever was

         10  necessary to improve the conditions in those

         11  hospitals.

         12                 Now according to federal law, at

         13  least 20 acres of Governor's Island must be reserved

         14  for educational purposes. Numerous buildings that

         15  once held classrooms, and would be perfect for high

         16  schools, are sitting vacant with sports fields

         17  adjacent, just waiting to be used.

         18                 A couple of weeks ago I took a group

         19  of parent leaders, some of them here today, to see

         20  the Island, and they were all tremendously impressed

         21  with the potential of existing buildings on the

         22  Island for conversion into a major high school

         23  complex.

         24                 Liggett Hall, which is a large

         25  Landmarked building, would be especially perfect in
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          2  this regard.  It is 450,000 square feet, 1,000 feet

          3  long, with two 225 foot wings. It could provide

          4  thousands of seats for high school students.

          5  Moreover, as it previously held classrooms, already

          6  has a huge gym on the top floor, and has numerous

          7  entrances and exits, it could be renovated into one

          8  large high school or a series of medium/small

          9  schools.

         10                 All three conceptual plans developed

         11  for GIPEC identify this building as an educational

         12  facility, and I just want to show you this, this

         13  give you a sense of the size of it, here is a front

         14  picture of the main entrance.  Here is the gym that

         15  exists on the top floor.

         16                 Something that I forgot to mention in

         17  my testimony, but I would like to mention now, is

         18  that there are two buildings on the Island that once

         19  held District 2 schools that are both sitting

         20  vacant.  One of them is Landmarked.  The other ones

         21  is modern, and looks like it could be moved into

         22  tomorrow but the GIPEC people want to tear it done

         23  because they do not want to keep any building on the

         24  Island that is not Landmarked.

         25                 Not only are our high schools
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          2  overcrowded citywide but as you know, the schools in

          3  downtown Manhattan are also extremely crowded, and

          4  are projected to become even more so overt the next

          5  few years.  In fact, District 2 is one of only four

          6  school districts in the entire city that the city

          7  projects enrollment will increase over the next five

          8  years.

          9                 By ferry, the Island is only six

         10  minutes away from several subway lines at the tip of

         11  Manhattan, and at the bottom of my testimony I

         12  append a letter signed by parent leaders from

         13  Manhattan and elsewhere in the city, including Tim

         14  Johnson the President of CPAC, and the Co- President

         15  of District 2 President's Councils, members of the

         16  Citywide Council of High Schools, including Walter

         17  Lynch, its President, members of President's Council

         18  and the CEC from District 1, the head of President's

         19  Councils from District 3 and 4, and PTA Presidents

         20  from many of our downtown schools, including P.S.

         21  234, P.S. 89, I.S. 89, and P.S. 3.  Some of them are

         22  here with my today, Lisa Donlan from the CEC is

         23  District 1, Beverly Marshak from the Citywide

         24  Council on High Schools, and Richard Barr on behalf

         25  of President's Council in District 3, and Tamara
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          2  Rowe from the PTA at P.S. 3, and Richard and Tamara

          3  would like to say a few words as well. But, the

          4  letter urges you and other members of the city

          5  council to make good on the Mayor's unmet promises,

          6  and for the sake of our children do everything in

          7  your power to ensure that a major high school

          8  complex is sited on Governor's Island soon.

          9                 Thank you for this opportunity.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you very

         11  much, and if you would just remain for a few

         12  moments.

         13                 Sir, state your name and affiliation

         14  please.

         15                 MR. BARR:  Richard Barr, I am a

         16  representative from the school District 3

         17  President's Council to the Citywide Chancellor's

         18  Parent Advisory Council.

         19                 I was one of the people who did the

         20  tour of Governor's Island two weeks ago, and

         21  although CPAC has not had a full meeting between

         22  that tour and this hearing, every member of CPAC,

         23  every representative from districts around the city

         24  that I have spoken with about this and about the

         25  letter that some of us co- signed are fully in
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          2  support.  There is nobody who disagrees with the

          3  fact that it would be an immensely appropriate use

          4  of some of Governor's Island to put high schools

          5  there and perhaps, even middle schools.

          6                 I had not been to the Island since I

          7  took a tour- I was a parent assisting on a field

          8  trip when my older daughter, who is now a high

          9  school senior was a first grader, but going now two

         10  weeks ago, and looking at the fact that all of the

         11  buildings in the historic part of the Island, which

         12  is more than half of the total acreage of the Island

         13  have to be maintained externally, the way they are

         14  because of Landmarking considerations, and

         15  considering that even in the southern, newer section

         16  of the Island, there are many wide open fields that

         17  are either already athletic fields or could be, and

         18  so, some of them could easily be adapted to be

         19  athletic fields for high schools that are in the

         20  norther half.

         21                 It is just, I mean the term`no-

         22  brainer' is I think overly used these days but if

         23  ever something qualified for that description, that

         24  is this.  I mean, some of that Island already looks

         25  like a beautiful campus of a small, private school
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          2  or college, and buildings which cannot be altered

          3  externally and would not really be adaptable for

          4  anything better than schools, like Liggett Hall, and

          5  three or four others that I saw on the Island, I

          6  mean, there is no better use for them that I could

          7  imagine.

          8                 I just wanted to point out that given

          9  that there are plans for adapting some of the Island

         10  for recreational or sightseeing or entertainment

         11  purposes, and I hope that those are not so large

         12  that they overwhelm some of the beautiful, historic

         13  aspects of the Island, but given that there are

         14  plans for that, I would imagine it will not be long

         15  before access will be available from others spots

         16  besides the Governor's Island Ferry Slip in Lower

         17  Manhattan.

         18                 So, not only could kids from Lower

         19  Manhattan benefit from going to high schools and

         20  maybe middle schools on the Island with a short, six

         21  minute ride, before long, there might be access from

         22  the Brooklyn waterfronts, so kids from the Red Hook

         23  section, or from Staten Island could get easy access

         24  and so, the potential here is to, it seems to me, is

         25  to relieve overcrowding, not only in Lower Manhattan
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          2  schools, but also perhaps in a 270 degree arch

          3  surrounding the Island, and take care of

          4  overcrowding problems for three boroughs.

          5                 So, 29 acres have to be schools, more

          6  than half the Island has to remain the way it is.  I

          7  urge the council to do everything you can to push to

          8  see that commercial interests do not ride roughshod

          9  over all of this, and that schools become a

         10  prominent part of the equation.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Mr. Koss or Ms. Rowe, who ever.

         15  Welcome.

         16                 MS. ROWE:  Thank you, thank you very

         17  much for giving us the chance to testify.

         18                 I am Tamara Rowe.  I am Vice

         19  President of the PTA for both P.S. 3 in the West

         20  Village and Clinton, which is in Chelsea, and is a

         21  middle school.

         22                 I was on the tour of Governor's

         23  Island, and was very impressed.  I think that we

         24  have got a good awareness today of the amount of

         25  growth that is happening in Lower Manhattan, and
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          2  also, Lower Manhattan is becoming a draw for

          3  families to stay.

          4                 So, I think our overcrowding is just

          5  going to continue unless we build some new schools.

          6  District 2 for example, just does not have enough

          7  middle school seats, period, for our currently

          8  enrolled students.  So, they have a formula in which

          9  they essentially bet that a certain number of

         10  students are either going to move out of the city or

         11  go to private schools.

         12                 As the city becomes a more desirable

         13  location for families to stay, that formula is no

         14  longer going to be adequate. I would love to see

         15  some kind of a high school complex put on Governor's

         16  Island.  What that would say to the children in

         17  terms of a beautiful campus, and what that says

         18  about how we value education for the, I think is a

         19  very powerful statement, if we want to encourage our

         20  children to continue in school and to be successful,

         21  and then become productive members of our work

         22  force. I am concerned that with the focus for CPAC

         23  on making this a profitable enterprise, they could

         24  call a conference center, an educational- you know,

         25  they could say a conference meets the educational
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          2  allotment that they have to set aside.  I do not

          3  think that that is acceptable.

          4                 So I fully support this, and in the

          5  matter of, I would guess, two hours of gathering

          6  signatures, I have probably got about 70 signatures.

          7    It just took me a half an hour a couple of

          8  mornings, an hour in the playground yesterday, I

          9  could easily get 200 to 500 signatures if I had more

         10  time to spend on this. This is just two days work.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Do you have a

         12  copy for the record?

         13                 MS. ROWE:  Yes, I have a copy of this

         14  for you. Yes, I would be happy to share this with

         15  you.

         16                 I think the moment I mentioned to

         17  parents that we have this tremendous need for more

         18  high school seats, and also for middle school seats,

         19  which perhaps if we can move some of our high school

         20  students there, perhaps there might be other

         21  facilities available on the island of Manhattan in

         22  which we could put some more middle school students.

         23    People were just more than happy to sign onto

         24  this.

         25                 The other issue I wanted to bring,
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          2  which is related, I think because I am a middle

          3  school parent and I have a daughter going into

          4  middle school next year, I am thinking a lot about

          5  our overcrowding in our middle schools.

          6                 In District 2 in the last couple of

          7  years, we have closed down the Museum Middle School,

          8  and just now Legacy closed down.  So, we have

          9  eliminated two middle schools in District 2 and not

         10  replaced them with anything.  My elementary school,

         11  P.S. 3, shares a space with GVMS, which I feel has

         12  the potential to be a really fabulous school but I

         13  do not think that they have been given the resources

         14  or the structural resources, or even the financial

         15  resources to become truly the successful school that

         16  it could be.  There is such a need in the community

         17  for that.

         18                 I just keep thinking about these

         19  parochial schools closing and wondering why the City

         20  is not trying to purchase some of those schools,

         21  which would take very little renovation to turn them

         22  into a useful middle school, and relieve the

         23  overcrowding at my school, P.S. 3., and allow for

         24  GVMS to expand.  They are now under an edict to

         25  expand but I can tell you that our cafeteria and
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          2  recess yard are not adequate to meet their currents

          3  needs, much less the needs of them as they continue

          4  to grow.  We are only allowed to have 150 kids at a

          5  time in the cafeteria, and I am pretty sure that

          6  their enrollment next year is going to be over 180.

          7                 So, I just think that there are a lot

          8  of creative ways we can look about solving the

          9  structural needs of our schools here, and reducing

         10  class size, but I think that both that the parents

         11  see the support of the city council to make that

         12  happen because I do not believe that the Mayor will

         13  do this on his own.

         14                 So, thank you for giving me the

         15  chance to speak.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Thank you very

         17  much, and Mr. Koss- if you could just remain for a

         18  few moments, and Mr. Koss, you have the privilege of

         19  wrapping it up.

         20                 MR. KOSS:  Good afternoon and thank

         21  you Chairman Gerson for giving me the opportunity to

         22  speak today.

         23                 Well first of all, my name is Steven

         24  Koss.  I am here both as a member of Community

         25  Education Council District 2, I am a member of the
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          2  council, and I am also here as the step father of a

          3  bi- lingual/ESL student at M.S. 131, so my

          4  particular interest, even though the CEC for

          5  District 2 is interested in all of the schools in

          6  District 2, middle school and primary school, my

          7  particular interest is the schools in the Chinatown

          8  area, and I am actually pleased in a sense to be the

          9  last speaker because one of the things I find

         10  instructive about this meeting this morning is that

         11  although there are many parents here talking about

         12  P.S. 3, I.S. 89, P.S. 89, 234, P.S. 3, and as they

         13  should be, I have not heard a single parent and I

         14  have certainly not seen a Chinese parent or anyone

         15  representing either P.S. 1, P.S. 2, P.S. 42, P.S.

         16  124, P.S. 130 or M.S. 131.  Now some of these

         17  schools are below Canal Street, some are above Canal

         18  Street by a block or two but they are all Lower

         19  Manhattan schools, and Chinatown, in fact, is

         20  sufficiently homogeneous and sort of self contiguous

         21  that it really is a piece of Lower Manhattan,

         22  whether it is above or below Canal Street.

         23                 So, I am actually please to be able

         24  to speak on behalf of the Chinatown schools.  By the

         25  same token, I have to apologize for not being able
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          2  to speak with a more informed data base.

          3                 We received, unfortunately, very late

          4  notification that you were having this hearing.  I

          5  attempted to get people together, some of the

          6  parents together, from those primary schools that I

          7  mentioned before, all five of them.  I managed to do

          8  that yesterday.  I got four of the schools to come,

          9  unfortunately, they people who came were not

         10  equipped to talk about this very well either.  They

         11  did not have statistics.  We did not have the

         12  numbers, the things I would have really liked to

         13  have had.  I also learned yesterday that this was

         14  the first time, to my knowledge and to their

         15  knowledge, it was the first time that this group of

         16  schools who are all within three, four, five blocks

         17  of each other had ever actually met as a group.

         18                 So, one of the things that came out

         19  of this is we are going to try to do that again, of

         20  course.  But in so saying, I would like to point our

         21  first that when Julie Menin spoke before, I thought

         22  she did a fabulous job talking about demographics.

         23                 I would like to point out that at

         24  least with respect to M.S. 131, which I am most

         25  intimately familiar, that demographics are important
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          2  to the Chinatown schools for the obvious reason that

          3  the population grows, but M.S. 131 is a

          4  catch basin for Chinese speaking or ESL needing

          5  students from District 3, which in fact, I live in

          6  District 3, my son goes to M.S. 131 because District

          7  3 could not support him.  They are also a catch

          8  basin for students from District 1, they are a catch

          9  basin for students from Brooklyn and Queens, and I

         10  personally know that students are coming to that

         11  school from Brooklyn and Queens.  So when we look at

         12  demographics, particularly for the Chinatown middle

         13  school, we need to be conscience that the Asian

         14  population, particularly the Chinese speaking

         15  population in New York, as it grows, it is not

         16  simply the Chinatown growth that is swamping M.S.

         17  131.

         18                 The week that I took my son into that

         19  school to be admitted, he was one of six they were

         20  admitting just that week, and this happens every

         21  week at M.S. 131.  They are taking in five or six,

         22  or eight or ten students every single week and

         23  finding space for them miraculously.  But the time

         24  is going to come when that is not going to be

         25  possible.
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          2                 So, I would love to have more

          3  statistics and numbers and things.  I am hoping to

          4  do that.  I am hoping there will be another

          5  opportunity, either a hearing or by written report

          6  that I can provide the council and your committee

          7  with the numbers to give you more information,

          8  specifically, with respect to Chinatown the way

          9  everybody else is talking about 234 and

         10  P.S. 3.

         11                 I apologize for not being able to do

         12  that, but I just simply could not get the right

         13  people together fast enough, especially since last

         14  week was a school break week and everybody was gone.

         15                 I also would like just one more thing

         16  to say.  I would be hopeful that in the future

         17  discussions about the education needs of the Lower

         18  Manhattan community that this committee, through its

         19  members or its staff, would reach out aggressively

         20  to the all the CEC's that are relevant.  CEC

         21  District 1, District 2, so that first of all that we

         22  are aware in a timely way that the council is going

         23  to meet and discuss these things so that we can, in

         24  fact, marshall the resources and the information

         25  necessary to help you, and provide input.  I would
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          2  suggest that you make a concerted effort to access

          3  not only the CEC's, but the President's Council as

          4  was mentioned before, perhaps Jennifer Greenblatt

          5  who is the parent - I forget what she is called- she

          6  is a conduit or contact for all of the parent

          7  coordinators and she is an excellent resource for

          8  communicating.

          9                 I would also invite yourself,

         10  Chairman Gerson, and perhaps Councilman Liu if he is

         11  so interested, to a future CEC meeting.  We would be

         12  happy to schedule a SEC meeting at one of the

         13  Chinatown schools, and make a concerted, highly

         14  concerted, effort to get the Chinatown community

         15  present for you to get input in all the educational

         16  needs of the Chinatown area, or anyone else in Lower

         17  Manhattan who would wish to come, of course.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  You know, I do

         19  not want to interrupt your testimony.

         20                 MR. KOSS:  No, actually that is all I

         21  really had to say.  So, thank you very much for the

         22  opportunity.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  If you will just

         24  hold on one moment.  Let me just make one or two

         25  housekeeping notes.

                                                            151

          1  LOWER MANHATTAN REDEVELOPMENT

          2                 We do have another hearing, I know of

          3  another committee scheduled for one o'clock.

          4                 We will be concluding this proceeding

          5  hearing within five to seven minutes, which is

          6  actually pretty good by city council time, so I just

          7  would like to ask my colleagues and members of the

          8  public who are here for the one o'clock hearing just

          9  to indulge us for just another few minutes, and then

         10  we will transition right over to you.

         11                 Before I do conclude, I want to take

         12  a moment just to thank the members of the council

         13  staff who have helped to prepare for this hearing,

         14  which has been an outstanding hearing, and that is

         15  our Counsel Arthur Schiff, our Policy Analyst,

         16  Patrick Mulvihill, my district office's Chief of

         17  Staff, Tammy Tow (phonetic), our Director of Land

         18  Use, Sire Lonial (phonetic), and our Director of

         19  Youth and Education Policy, David Finer.

         20                 Just a couple of questions but just

         21  first to clarify, and perhaps there was a little

         22  misunderstanding as to the specific topic of this

         23  hearing, though we recognize that everything is

         24  inter- related, but we were specifically addressing

         25  the infrastructure needs that were directly mandated
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          2  as a result of the Mayor's "visions" for Lower

          3  Manhattan, which involved bringing on- line 10,000

          4  units of additional residential housing,

          5  specifically in the Seaport area, and the Lower West

          6  Side of the Lower Manhattan district.

          7                 So that was, because you cannot cover

          8  every topic in each hearing, that was the topic for

          9  this hearing.  We have had previous hearings on

         10  human services needs, including youth services needs

         11  of the entire Lower Manhattan area including

         12  focusing on Chinatown and the Lower East Side.  We

         13  will have those hearings again. I have personally

         14  visited each of the schools you have mentioned, with

         15  which I am very well acquainted, and we have

         16  actually initiated many school initiatives in

         17  Chinatown and the Lower East Side, which will be

         18  coming on- line and again, they are the subjects of

         19  ongoing hearings and ongoing work by this committee

         20  and this district office.

         21                 So I can assure you that we cannot-

         22  and there have been hearings, there will be hearings

         23  with that focus, when we will not include a focus on

         24  some of the issues, or some of the other areas just

         25  because as you could see, time establishes
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          2  limitations.

          3                 I am glad to hear though that as a

          4  result of this you were able to have that meeting

          5  with all the PTA's brought together because that

          6  will certainly will lead to important follow up.  I

          7  mean just as an example, one of the issues on my

          8  agenda on this afternoon is the issue involving the

          9  merger of space between P.S. 31 and P.S. 134 on the

         10  Lower East Side.

         11                 So, we are certainly well acquainted

         12  and well involved in issues involving District 1, as

         13  well as

         14  District 2, and you are absolutely right, as part of

         15  the overall complexion and future of Lower Manhattan

         16  we need to consider all as we have and as we will.

         17                 So, I thank you though for your

         18  presence and your testimony.

         19                 I just want have a couple of very

         20  specific follow up questions.

         21                 To Ms. Haimson, you referred to the

         22  school facilities currently existing on Governor's

         23  Island, and by the way I should mention, I have

         24  taken numerous visits to the Island in previous

         25  capacities, both in my capacity as a member of the
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          2  Army Reserve and also when Sofie Gerson served as

          3  member of School Board 2, she was a liaison to the

          4  elementary school which then existed on the Island,

          5  so I agree with your assessment from my first- hand

          6  observations that we have some great potential

          7  there.

          8                 Did I hear you to say that you feel

          9  it would be not a good idea to remove the facility

         10  which previously served as a school on the Island?

         11                 MS. HAIMSON:  Well, they did not let

         12  me into the building to see what the condition was

         13  on the inside, but it looked like a perfectly good

         14  modern school building to me from the exterior.

         15  But, their position in general is that every

         16  building that is not Landmarked should be torn down,

         17  and it is clear that that is a school building.  It

         18  is not going to be able to be converted into a

         19  profit- making center for them.

         20                 One of the reasons, I mean, I think

         21  it would be great to open it back up as a school,

         22  like a middle school or a high school for Downtown

         23  parents especially, but generally speaking, they

         24  feel that they are saddled with a lot of Landmarked

         25  buildings that they would prefer not to have to be
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          2  stuck with, and every building that they can tear

          3  down, they want to.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Okay, I mean I

          5  was also present on the Island when the Governor and

          6  the Mayor made that grand announcement that there

          7  was going to be this wonderful educational complex,

          8  and unfortunately, that has to be added to the list

          9  of grandiose announcements still waiting to be

         10  fulfilled.

         11                 I agree with you that a school

         12  facility that would take advantage of the unique

         13  space opportunities on that Island for athletics

         14  could serve, not only the school, but during after

         15  school time, the community at large, and it seems to

         16  me it would be- your point is absolutely on target

         17  that it would be a shame to waste that.

         18                 MS. HAIMSON:  And with Liggett Hall,

         19  officially they say they are marketing it as a

         20  conference center, but off the record, the people at

         21  GIPEC have told me, and I agree completely, if you

         22  have seen the building, it looks like no conference

         23  center you have ever seen in your life.  It really

         24  only looks like it can be used for classrooms.  I

         25  just cannot imagine what else they can come up with,
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          2  and it just seems to me such a waste to have this

          3  huge building full of classrooms, could be high

          4  schools next year, we have severe overcrowding of

          5  our high schools citywide, and in Manhattan in

          6  particular, why are not we doing something with that

          7  space?  I know that a few--.

          8                 MR. BARR:  It already has cafeteria's

          9  and gyms in it.

         10                 MS. HAIMSON:  Cafeteria's, gyms and

         11  all the rest. Now I know that there has been a few

         12  request submissions that are going to be made from

         13  KIP, which is a very well funded charter school to

         14  go on the Island.

         15                 As far as I know, there is one small

         16  public school that wants to go on the Island as

         17  well, the Harbor School.  But this is more for

         18  everybody who has not gotten it together to put

         19  through a proposal.  This is for the kids in New

         20  York City schools, the high school students

         21  everywhere who are suffering, and I just want to see

         22  some leadership on it, and I know that Robert

         23  Jackson who went on a tour, and a lot of the staff

         24  of the Education Committee.  I wanted to bring it to

         25  your attention, Council Member Gerson, because I
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          2  know that you really care about Downtown Manhattan,

          3  and you can be a bulldog with the Mayor when you

          4  want to be.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  I hope the Mayor

          6  is listening to that one.  I should probably adjourn

          7  the hearing on that note, but I just do want to

          8  assure you that we will follow up.

          9                 We have seized on the potential for

         10  locating a school there.  I think you are absolutely

         11  right.  The great danger is that they are going to

         12  classify some other use as "educational", and that

         13  is what we have to avoid and fight against.

         14                 So, I can assure you we will follow

         15  up.  We actually are in the process of scheduling a

         16  joint hearing specifically on Governor's Island, do

         17  we have a date yet?

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Late in June.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  It will be late

         20  June, probably post- budget hearing season.

         21                 So, we will re- invite you to return.

         22    That will be a joint hearing of this Committee and

         23  the Waterfronts Committee, but between now and then

         24  we will definitely serve as the bulldog you are

         25  correctly asking us to do.
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          2                 Just one very quick question, which

          3  is important, with a specific fact, I think to Ms.

          4  Rowe with respect to P.S. 3. Could you just describe

          5  the crowding conditions for both the elementary and

          6  the middle school because that is actually the next

          7  closest to the schools that we have in Lower

          8  Manhattan?

          9                 I need ask you to just walk over to

         10  the mic, and then we will conclude this hearing.

         11                 MS. ROWE:  P.S. 3 has three floors of

         12  an elementary, we have three floors of a four- story

         13  building.  The first three floors are the elementary

         14  school.  We have at this point, we have been able to

         15  maintain a small class size for our K- and First

         16  Grade classes.  Our second and third grade, I think,

         17  we are up to close to--.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Did you have

         19  Pre- k?

         20                 MS. ROWE:  We have Pre- K and next

         21  year we are fortunate enough to have gotten funding

         22  from the region for a full day Pre- K.

         23                 So, we will be offering both morning

         24  and afternoon Pre- K, and then a full day Pre- K,

         25  which really responds to the communities needs.
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          2                 I do not know if you know about the

          3  Pre- K situation in our neighborhood, but people

          4  spend all night to get a public Pre- K spot outside

          5  some schools.  Certainly they spend all night to get

          6  private school Pre- K spots.

          7                 So, this will very much help but that

          8  is pretty much being filled up by siblings of

          9  current students because there is such demand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Suffice to say,

         11  the demand exceeds the supply.

         12                 MS. ROWE:  It definitely exceeds the

         13  supply.  Then when you look at our class sizes, we

         14  are probably 28 for our second and third grade, and

         15  now we are approaching 30 again for our fourth and

         16  fifth grade.

         17                 We had smaller class sizes last year,

         18  but that higher enrollment, we could not do that

         19  again.

         20                 We do not have a science room, we

         21  have a gym that has padded pillars, which in not

         22  really a gym.  We have a cafeteria with the capacity

         23  for 150.  We share the space with the middle school.

         24    They do not have a gym, so they have to use the

         25  padded room to have gym, and they are now at
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          2  capacity, and I think they are 150, and they are

          3  going up to something like 180 next year.  That

          4  really exceeds the fire code regulations for our

          5  cafeteria, and in a middle school of, I am not sure

          6  if you are familiar with the scheduling, all of the

          7  students have to have lunch at the same time.  So

          8  you have to have all of those kids at lunch at the

          9  same time, and at recess at the same time.

         10                 Our recess yard is an elementary

         11  recess yard, which is not very suitable.  There is

         12  no alternative space for the kids to go, which

         13  creates problems within the larger community.

         14                 At Clinton, the other middle school

         15  my daughter goes to, they have a roof that is

         16  private for them, and that gives them a sense of

         17  ownership in the community, which our students do

         18  not have, and then that does not necessarily create

         19  good feelings among the neighboring businesses.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON:  Sure, I think

         21  you have described the need very well, and I want to

         22  thank each of you for your testimony.

         23                 We will follow up on all the issues

         24  and needs presented.  This has been an outstanding

         25  hearing.
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          2                 I thank all who participated, and

          3  this hearing is now adjourned.  I thank folks who

          4  are here for the next hearing, thank you for your

          5  indulgence and patience.

          6                 Thank you, especially since I know so

          7  many of you.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:15 p.m.)
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          9            I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         22                 -----------------------
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